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CHARTING THE COURSE

'MESSAGE FROM THE PRES T

Dear Valued Shareholders,

The century-long story at Fidelity Deposit & Discount Bank turned the page on a new chapter in 2004. We continued
pursuing our theme of “restructure, rebuild and retool” which was developed last year, but in 2004 we began to clearly
chart our course into our second century. Qur efforts to rebuild the company’s earnings began to bear fruit. Net
income for 2004 reached $3.364 million, a 105% increase over the previous year. This represents a return on average
assets of .619%, still not up to the standards we are striving for, yet a marked improvement over the .29% that we
produced in 2003.

A critical part of our efforts to improve the Company has been to improve asset quality. Strides were made in this
direction as reserve for loan losses reached 1.54% of total loans, an increase from the 1.28% coverage at the end of
last year. More importantly we've continued to strengthen both the credit function and our administration of the
credit process. New credits meet quality standards and existing credits are dealt with in an appropriate manner.

The theme of this year’s report is “Charting Our Course Into the Future” and we began the process by focusing on
many new initiatives. We began management training for all of our management personnel to insure they have the
tools necessary to lead our company in an increasingly complex environment. We began to undertake sales training
so our personnel are attuned to our customers’ needs and can help identify the Fidelity products that fit those needs.
We began the implementation of market leading software solutions to help us understand our existing customer
relationships and to identify areas where we may be able to improve those relationships.

in July of 2004, | was honored to have been chosen as your Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. In
deciding to take this opportunity, | was impressed with the history of Fidelity Bank, the quality of our Board and our
staff, and the loyalty and deep relationships that we have developed with our customers for over one hundred vyears.
I was humbled to be chosen to succeed Mike Marranca, Bill Quinn and the other leaders who have helped build such
a sound foundation for Fidelity Bank.

My goal for Fidelity is to build a strong Community Bank that rewards our shareholders, our employees and our
customers. By providing our dedicated employees with an interesting, challenging and rewarding work environment,
our staff will be more than ready to help our customers reach their financial goals. When we provide our customers
with valuable financial services, our customers will utilize more of our products and we will grow our customer base
over time. Then you, our shareholders, should expect that your investment in us will be used wisely, and will grow
as the Bank continues to grow.

All of us at Fidelity wish to thank you for the continued support we have received. | personally want to thank all of you
for the warm welcome | have received. The Directors, Managers and employees of Fidelity Bank are working hard to
build your Bank into a community bank we can reflect on with pride.

I promise that we will continue to be a good member of the community, participating in events that benefit us all, such
as the Susan G. Komen Race for the Cure, the Make-A-Wish telethon, Family to Family Thanksgiving for Friends of the
Poor, Party in the Park fundraiser for the Everhart Museum, and the United Way.

In closing, I'd like to thank some very important people who left us in 2004. Chairman Mike Marranca and Director John
Clinsky retired after many years of service to the organization. We thank them for their diligence in helping build a solid
organization. We'd also like to remember our friend and co-worker, Joseph Marmo, who passed away last year after a
hard-fought struggle with Leukemia. Joe served as a Financial Advisor in Luzerne County and worked out of our
Kingston Branch Office. He is deeply missed.

iz

Steven C. Ackmann, President & Chief Executive Officer
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'FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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For the Year Ended

2003

% Change

2002

Amount % Change Amount Amount Amount

Net Interest Income $ 16,215,356 13.99% $ 14,224,964 -14.74% $ 16,684,953 $ 15,526,058 $ 13,617,550
Net Income $ 3,364,474 104.75% $ 1,643,248 -59.39% $ 4,046,173 $ 3,848,136 $ 3,182,628
Dividends § 1,610,423 0.53% $ 1,601,898 4.95% $ 1,526,371 $ 1,426,097 $ 1,366,075
Shares Qutstanding at Year End* 1,839,572 0.91% 1,823,043 0.20% 1,819,376 1,819,168 1,806,274
Net Income Per Share** $1.84 104.44% $0.90 -59.64% $2.23 $2.12 $1.76
Net Income Per Share, (Diluted) $1.84 104.44% $0.90 -59.46% $2.22 $2.12 $1.76
Dividends Per Share $0.88 0.00% $0.88 4.76% $0.84 $0.79 $0.76
Weighted-Average

Shares Qutstanding* 1,830,725 0.57% 1,820,403 0.16% 1,817,430 1,811,391 1,803,674
Return on
Average Assets 0.61% 0.29% 0.70% 0.72% 0.67%
Average Capital 7.51% 3.63% 9.47% 9.64% 9.54%
Average Earning Assets 0.65% 0.31% 0.73% 0.75% 0.70%
At Year End
Assets $536,675,138 -6.70% $575,215,466 -0.48% $577,993,316 $569,029,838 $491,077,054
Earning Assets*** $499,849,188 -6.67% $535,579,648 -0.56% $538,586,687 $529,985,392 $469,399,890
Deposits $365,615,335 -8.92% $401,442,546 -2.98% $413,788,176 $407,778,728 $339,310,328
Net Loans $381,546,375 3.97% $366,981,640 3.59% $354,262,050 $353,976,324 $333,600,975
Loans Available for Sale $ 576,378  -97.10% $ 19,863,577 -30.83% $ 28,715,355 $ 16,150,020 $ 9,953,958
Shareholders' Equity $ 46,366,760 5.54% $ 43,931,899 -2.88% $ 45234,433 $ 40,172,230 $ 37,215,063
Book Value Per Share** $25.33 4.95% $24.13 -3.04% $24.89 $22.18 $20.63
Ratios

Net Loans to Deposits 104.36% 91.42% 85.61% 86.81% 98.32%

Shareholders' Equity to Deposits 12.68% 10.94% 10.93% 9.85% 10.97%

Tier | Capital to Assets 8.61% 7.68% 7.60% 7.28% 7.84%

Tier Il Capital to Assets 9.52% 8.51% 8.28% 7.93% 8.52%

* Amounts were adjusted for the 2000 Stock Exchange

** Calculations are based on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding

*** Earning assets are stated at amortized cost less non-accrual loans
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Mr. Steven C. Ackmann joined the Bank and Company in July
2004 as President and Chief Executive Officer. He has been a
member of the Bank Board since july 2004.

Mr. Patrick J. Dempsey is Chairman of the Board. He is also Chief
Executive Officer of Dempsey Uniform & Supply, Inc. Mr. Dempsey
has been a member of the Bank Board since 1985 and the
Company Board since 1999,

Mr. Michael J. McDonald is Vice Chairman of the Board. He is a
partner with the law firm of Foley, McLane, Foley, McDonald and
MacGregor, P.C. Mr. McDonald has been a member of the Bank
Board since 1994 and the Company Board since 1999.

Mr. Paul A. Barrett is Secretary of the Board of Directors. He is a
principal shareholder with the law firm of O'Malley, Harris, Durkin
and Perry, P.C. He joined the Bank Board in 1988 and the
Company Board in 1999.

Mr. John T. Cognetti is Assistant Secretary of the Board of
Directors. He is President of Hinerfeld Realty, Co. Mr. Cognetti
joined the Bank Board in 1988 and the Company Board in 1999.

Mr. David L. Tressler, Sr. is a businessman with extensive

banking expertise. He is a consultant with The Quandel Group, Inc.
He took his seat on the Bank Board in 1998 and the Company
Board in 1999.

Mrs. Mary E. McDonald is a retired educator with
substantial business experience. She joined the Bank
and Company Board in 2000.

Mr. Brian J. Cali maintains a private law practice. He joined
the Bank and Company Board in 2001.

Mr. Samuel C. Cali serves as Chairman Emeritus. He joined the
Bank Board in 1958 and the Company Board in 1999. He is a
retired business executive,




Steven C. Ackmann

President & Chief Executive Officer

Patrick J. Dempsey
Chairman of the Board

This year was one of significant progress for this
organization. After working through a year of
restructuring, rebuilding and retooling in 2003, we were
able to position the Bank for many accomplishments in
2004. All systems became “go” when the appointment

of Patrick Dempsey as Chairman of the Board was
announced. A successful, local businessman, Pat has
taken the helm of the holding company and is leading

it into the future. Helping Pat chart the course is the
Executive Committee of Michael McDonald, Esq. and Brian
Cali, Esq. along with the other dedicated members of our
Board. This team managed the Company along with our
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Dan
Santaniello and Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer Sal DeFrancesco during the Bank’s
search for a President and Chief Executive Officer.

In July, we announced the culmination of our search for
President and CEO when Steven C. Ackmann was named
to the top post. A former President and COO of a large
regional bank headquartered in Western Pennsylvania,
Steve brings over 30 years of banking experience to

us, including the knowledge of leading both small

and large institutions.

With new leadership in place, the organization
was ready to move into a new era.




CHARTING THE COURSE

The first steps in charting our new
course included focusing on key areas
of the organization, including:

CH

® Shareholders
8 Customers

= Employees
= Community

Focus on Increasing Shareholder Value

As shareholders, you have been the lifeblood of this organization
for over 100 years. You have stayed the course and maintained
faith in the organization. in return, the Company has focused on
creating a bank where customers want to do business, and where
we are committed to increasing shareholder value.

We had many successes during this year of change, with a
significant 105% increase in net income. Although overall
deposits are down because of high cost Certificate of Deposit run
off, our core deposits of Savings, Checking Accounts, NOW, and
Money Market Accounts continued to steadily increase during
2004. Retail and commercial average core deposits rose 15% over
the last year. That comparison is especially noteworthy because
we believe we have retained our “true” customer... the person or
company who banks with us for all the right reasons: our array of
products and services, our attention to customer service, and our
desire to be part of the community.

Although overall net average loan growth was modest during
2004, Home Equity Lines of Credit grew 39%, in good part to a
Prime Rate that continued to stay low. In addition, we are proud
that our Commerciat Lending Division is part of the resurgence
and rebirth of Northeastern Pennsylvania. Our commercial loans
grew 5% on average throughout 2004, with such successes as
the Electric City Harley Davidson dealership on Route 6 in
Dickson City, Riverfront Sports Complex in downtown Scranton
and Dunmore’s new Green Ridge Health Care Facility.

Qur non-interest income continued to rise as well. Qur Trust
Services and Fidelity Asset Management Division continued to
show increased revenue growth with a 13% and 5% increase,
respectively, in 2004.

Focus on Customers

Time and time again, your Bank has prided itself on its
customer service values. We believe that the reason we have
generation after generation of customers who bank with us is
that we are not only a financial institution, but a member of the
family. We pride ourselves in offering products from birth
through retirement, helping our customers through all

their life events.

...WOR/(5 FOR

s e L

Although we knew we offer great service, we never had any
research studies to prove it. We had surveys that were
gualitative in nature but no hard and fast data. Late last
fall, we instituted a customer service survey sent to 1,400
randomly selected customers.

Overwhelmingly, the response was one of excellent service, with
friendly and helpful staff at all locations. Out of a possible 4.0,
the overall numbers were above 3.5 in all categories. We will
continue to monitor our customer service in a variety of ways so
that our customers are always receiving exemplary financial care.

Ask how our
Full Service Personal
Trust Department
can help you.

© Revocable Trusts
» Irrevocable Trusts

a Special Needs Trusts

® Testamentary Trusts

® Charitable Teusts

# Guardianships

a Executor of Estate services
s Endowments

THEY TRUST YOU...

PUT YOUR
L TRUST
IN US.
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'CHARTING THE COURSE

Workshop Facilitator

Paul Wallenhorst
President, Wallenhorst Associates, Ltd

Focus on Employees

Charting a course for our staff’s successes included undertaking a
number of new initiatives, including staff development, reorganization,
and the addition of new staff positions as we focus on offering our
customers the right product at the right time.

Pulling our staff together and having everyone work from the same
page was the number one priority. In September, the first quarterly
meeting of managers and supervisors occurred. This half-day meeting
brought all areas of the Bank together, and provided a means to build
a cohesive and structured team.

We needed to begin investing in our greatest asset.., our employees.
A Management Development training program consisting of courses
in supervisory development, sales, customer service, and overall
Bank goals was implemented for all officers, managers, and staff

of the Bank.

With increased attention to needs-based product offerings, Executive
Management determined that additional coaching and training needed
to take place. To facilitate this process, three regional branch sales
managers were named, including Francis Crowley, manager of our
Abington Branch; jody Lewis, manager of our Moosic Branch; and
Donna Gizenski, manager of our Kingston Branch. Each Regional
Manager is responsible for the sales initiatives and goals of up to

four branches, in addition to providing coaching and mentoring

for other branch managers.

In 2002, your Bank decided to use the services of a Mortgage
Consultant. This sales person acts externally, developing
relationships with realtors and builders, to sell mortgage loans.

The project was so successful that in 2004 two additional Mortgage
Consultants were added to the staff. Joining Catherine Langan in the
mortgage sales process are Paul Arvay and Brian Rinaldi. The three
originators work and serve different areas within our marketplace.

Our focus on building a strong credit culture led us to the experience
and wisdom of John Corcoran. John joined our staff as Special Assets
Officer, a position he held at another regional financial institution, and
has already provided considerable guidance as we work through
non-accruing loans.




Focus on Community

We take our mission as a Community Bank seriously. We know it
is important to be a good corporate citizen and a good member
of the community. In 2004, we expanded our interaction through
the use of many additional special events that helped us to
demonstrate our commitment to the community.

We began to partner with the Scranton Chamber of Commerce in
activities that would bring us to the forefront of our customers.
The Bank sponsored the Small Business of the Year Award
Luncheon held in conjunction with the Chamber Business Expo.
Executive Vice President and COOQ, Daniel Santaniello, gave
opening remarks and presented the award as the primary
sponsor of the event. In addition, we sponsored the Chamber’s
and MetroAction’s Entrepreneur Week held in September. Bank
officers such as Assistant Vice President, Jack Ferrett led seminars
in how to start a business and how to obtain funding.

Bill McAndrew, our Financial Advisor, led a “Women and Investing”
seminar in December for the Women's Network of the Chamber.
As always, Bill led a lively discussion that helped highlight the
many services he offers.

In early December, your Bank partnered with one of its vendors,
Shred-Doc. The company provides shredding services for all our
sensitive documents. To highlight the dangers of identity theft,
Shred-Doc offered to shred up to four paper boxes of documents
free to all customers. We suggested that they expand it to all
citizens in our service area. Shred-Doc agreed and shredded as
much as 4,000 Ibs of paper during one Saturday morning.
“Shredding Day” was such a success that we will offer it once
again for our Luzerne County customers and friends.

In addition to the large events that the Bank plans and
participates in, our staff has shown to have a large heart and be
civic-minded. Over 60 different staff members participated in at
least one major event per month, including the Make-a-Wish
Telethon, St. Joseph's Annual Summer Picnic, The American Heart
Association’s Heart Walk in both Lackawanna and Luzerne
Counties, March of Dimes Walk, the Susan G. Komen Foundation
Race for the Cure, and many more.
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SETTING SAIL

As the Bank sets sail into the future, the Executive
Management Team is clearly guiding the bank to steady,
controlled, profitable growth, with the introduction of new
initiatives, new products, new branches, new marketing
strategies and new lending guidelines.

A variety of new products were developed this year through
customer demand and through the identification of market
trends. Our two new checking accounts led the way.
Freedom™ and EZ Access™ Checking were introduced last
summer, capitalizing on the needs of the market. Freedom™
became our totally free, all the time checking; while EZ
Access™ was a special electronically-based Checking
Account with features such as Online Banking, Web Bill Pay
and Check Card Services.

New savings products were also added to our existing array
including our Optimum Savings™, which offers a premium
competitive rate (similar to a Certificate of Deposit), but
maintains the liquidity of a savings account. A Tax/Escrow
Club Account specially designed to help homeowners

easily manage the payment of their taxes and insurance
was also introduced.

We also designed products that would make life easier

for our customer. Now, through our EZ Statement™, all
customers can receive their statements online, never
worrying about losing mail or dealing with identity theft. For
those who still enjoy going to the mailbox, our Combined
Statement provides related multi-account information on a
simple, easy-to-read format.

If you've visited some of our branch locations over the last
few months, you may notice new in-branch signage units.
" Over the last year, we have tried to increase customer
- awareness of all that we can offer. Our new units help to

highlight our best products and services.

The way we market our products to our customers and
prospects has changed greatly in the past year. There is a
more scientific approach to purchasing media, selling
product, and building a positive identity in the marketplace.
A focus on direct response marketing has shown that the
Marketing Department can also be a significant profit center
for your Bank. A very successful Welcome Packet direct mail
piece has generated over $100,000 in first year net income
with a measured Return on Investment of 1,073%.

The Fidelity Executive Team
Standing left to right:

Daniel J. Santaniello

Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer
Steven C. Ackmann

President & Chief Executive Officer
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
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CHARTING THE COURSE

~ MAKING HEADWAY |

One of the primary focuses of 2004 was to make sure all the
Business Units were working towards a common goal. When
we work together, we achieve far greater results than if we
work alone. We must “row” together to continue to achieve
successful results. With new leadership at the helm, we are
beginning to see all sails pointed in the same direction.

This year, renewed effort was put into maximizing
shareholder value by:

1) increasing low cost deposits
2) attracting higher quality loans
3) increasing non-interest income

Through tactical planning and reassessing what we need to do to
succeed, Executive Management allowed the asset size of the
Bank to decline modestly. Because of this strategic positioning,
our interest margin has experienced continuous improvement,
while fee and service charge income has risen. In addition,

we continue to grow and monitor our products and services

to continue to serve our customer base.

With all of its capable hands on deck, Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.
is ready to encounter smooth sailing...Anchors Aweigh!
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are a public company whose stock is
traded on the Over The Counter Bulletin
Board under the symbol FDBC.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Shareholders services provided

u Stock transfer

= Dividend reinvestment plan

= Direct deposit of dividends

m Duplicate mailing notification

Registrar and Transfer Company
B Attn: Investor Relations
, 10 Commerce Drive

! Cranford, N) 07016-3572

£
‘ »U(s':l& «“ (800) 368-5948 or info@rtco.com
OENCON gy

Shareholder/Investor Inquiries

Requests for information or assistance regarding Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.
stock should be directed to our Investor Relations Department at
570-348-4357 or investor@fddbank.com.

Market Makers
The following firms are believed to presently make a market in Fidelity D & D
Bancorp, Inc. Stock on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board.

Boenning & Scattergood, Inc. Pershing Trading Company, LP.
(610) 832-1212 (201) 413-3531

Four Tower Bridge One Pershing Plaza

200 Barr Harbor Drive Suite 300 Jersey City, NJ 07399

West Conshohocken, PA 19428
Ryan Beck & Co,, Inc.

Hill Thompson Magid, L.P. (973) 549-4000
(201) 434-6900 18 Columbia Turnpike
15 Exchange Place Suite 800 Florham Park, NJ 07932

Jersey City, NJ 07302
Schwab Capital Markets L.P.

Knight Equity Markets, L.P. (201) 963-9100
(201) 222-9400 111 Pavonia Avenue
Newport Tower East Jersey City, N) 07310

525 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, N} 07310

Monroe Securities, Inc.

(800) 766-5560

343 West Erie Street Suite 410
Chicago, IL 60610
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.
PART 1

ITEM I: BUSINESS

Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, on August 10, 1999, and is a
bank holding company, whose wholly owned state chartered commercial bank is The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank (the Bank)
(collectively, the Company). The Company is headquartered at Blakely and Drinker Streets in Dunmore, Pennsylvania.

The Bank has offered a full range of traditional banking services since it commenced operations in 1903. In addition, the Bank has a
personal and corporate trust department and also provides alternative financial and insurance products with asset management
services. A complete list of services provided by the Bank is detailed in the section entitled “Products & Services” contained within
the 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders, incorporated by reference. The service area is comprised of the Borough of Dunmore and
the surrounding communities within Lackawanna and Luzerne counties.

The Bank is one of two financial institutions headquartered in Dunmore, Pennsylvania. The banking business is highly competitive,
and the profitability of the Company depends principally upon the Company’s ability to compete in its market area. The Company
competes with, among other sources, the following:

e local community banks ® insurance companies

e savings banks e money market funds

e regional banks e mutual funds

e credit unions e small loan companies

e savings & loans e other financial service companies

The Company has been able to compete effectively with other financial institutions by emphasizing technology and customer service,
including local branch decision making on loans, establishing long-term customer relationships and building customer loyalty and
providing products and services designed to address the specific needs of its customers.

There are no concentrations of loans that, if lost, would have a materially adverse effect on the continued business of the Bank. The
Bank's loan portfolio does not have a material concentration within a single industry or group of related industries that are vulnerable
to the risk of a near-term severe impact. However, the Company’s success is dependent to a significant degree on economic
conditions in Northeastern Pennsylvania, especially in Lackawanna and Luzerne counties, which the Company defines as its primary
market area. The banking industry is affected by general economic conditions including the effects of inflation, recession,
unemployment, real estate values, trends in the hational and global economics and other factors beyond the Company’s control. An
economic recession or a delayed economic recovery over a prolonged period of time in the Company’s primary market area could
cause an increase in the level of the Bank’s non-performing assets and loan losses, and thereby cause operating losses, impairment of
liquidity and erosion of capital. We cannot assure you that adverse changes in the local economy would not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The Company had 173 full-time equivalent employees, on December 31, 2004, which includes exempt officers and part-time
employees.

Federal and state banking laws contain numerous provisions that affect various aspects of the business and operations of the Company
and the Bank. The Company is subject to, among others, the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and
the Federal Reserve Board (the “FRB”) and the Bank is subject to, among others, the regulations of the Pennsylvania Department of
Banking and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”). Refer to Part 11, [tem 7 “Supervision and Regulation” for
descriptions of and references to applicable statutes and regulations which are not intended to be complete descriptions of these
provisions or their effects on the Company or the Bank. They are summaries only and are qualified in their entirety by reference to
such statutes and regulations.




Applicable regulations relate to, among other things:

e  operations e mergers e branches

®  securities ¢ consolidation e capital adequacy
e risk management e reserves

e consumer compliance e dividends

The Bank is examined by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and the FDIC. The last examination was jointly conducted by the
Pennsylvania Department of Banking and the FDIC as of September 30, 2004.

The Company’s website address is www.the-fidelity.com. The Company makes available through this website the Annual Report on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably
practical after filing with the SEC. Further, you may read and copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an internet site that contains reports, proxy and information
statements and other information about the Company at http://www.sec.gov.

The Company’s accounting policies and procedures are designed to comply with accounting principles, generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP). Refer to “Critical Accounting Policies,” which are incorporated by reference in Part II, Item 7.

ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2004, the Bank operated 12 full-service banking offices, of which three were owned and nine were leased. None
of the lessors of the properties leased by the Bank are affiliated with the Company or the Bank and all of these properties are located
in the state of Pennsylvania. The Company is headquartered at its owner occupied main branch located on the corner of Blakely and
Drinker Streets in Dunmore, PA. The main office is a full-service banking center including a walk-up teller window, drive-thru teller
windows and two 24-hour automated teller machines (ATMs). Executive and administrative, loan, trust, asset management services,
operational departments and customer service areas are also located at this facility. The main office complex is owned by the
Company and free of any encumbrances.

The Green Ridge Branch, the first Scranton facility, operates from leased space in the Green Ridge Shopping Center in Scranton, PA.
This branch is a full-service office with a 24-hour ATM.

A second Scranton Branch is in a leased facility located at 139 Wyoming Avenue, Scranton, PA. This office has a walk-up window
and provides full-service banking to the downtown Scranton area.

The Abington Branch is located on the Morgan Highway in Clarks Summit, PA. The building from which the branch operates is
leased. This office provides full-service financial products, including a 24-hour ATM and drive-thru teller windows. This office
provides convenience to our customers located throughout the greater Abington area.

The Keystone Industrial Park Branch (KIP) is located in Dunmore, PA. This office provides full-service banking with drive-thru teller
windows and a 24-hour ATM. KIP is owned by the Company and is free of encumbrances.

The Pittston Branch is located in Bruno’s Supermarket, 403 Kennedy Boulevard, Pittston, PA. The space in the supermarket is leased.
This office provides full-service banking including a 24-hour ATM. This location provides convenient service at extended hours to
the Bank’s clientele in Luzerne County, Pennsylvania.

The Financial Center Branch is located at 338 North Washington Avenue in Scranton, PA. This office provides full-service banking,
including a 24-hour ATM. Executive, finance and operational offices are located in this building. A portion of the third floor is
leased to a non-related entity. The Company owns the property free of encumbrance. The Company also owns, free of encumbrance,
an adjacent attached building, which was available for lease during 2004.

The Moosic Branch is located at 4010 Birney Avenue, Moosic, PA. The branch operates from leased space and provides full-service
banking, including a 24-hour ATM and drive-thru teller windows. The branch’s location provides the necessary link between the
Lackawanna and Luzerne County branch office networks.




The West Pittston Branch is located in the Insalaco Shopping Center at 801 Wyoming Avenue, West Pittston, PA. The branch
operates from leased space. This office provides full-service banking, including a 24-hour ATM, to the Luzerne County area.

The Peckville Branch is located at 1598 Main Street, Peckville, PA. The branch operates from leased space and provides full-service
banking, including a 24-hour ATM and drive-thru teller windows.

The Bank’s branch coverage in Luzerne County includes a leased space known as the Kingston Branch, located at 247 Wyoming
Avenue, Kingston, PA. This office provides full-service financial products, including a 24-hour ATM and drive-thru teller windows.

The Eynon Branch is located on Route 6 Business, Eynon, PA. The branch operates from leased space. This office provides full-
service financial products, including a 24-hour ATM and drive-thru teller windows.

In addition to the full-service branches, there is a banking facility, limited to serve employees and patients, located in the Clarks
Summit State Hospital, Clarks Summit, PA. The office is leased from the hospital under a lease for service provided agreement.

In addition to the properties above, the Bank maintains several free-standing 24-hour ATMs located at the following locations in
Pennsylvania:
e 300 Meadow Avenue, Scranton
511 Main Street, Childs
1650 West Main Street, Stroudsburg
320 South Blakely Street, Dunmore
Marywood College, 2300 Adams Avenue, Nazareth Hall, Scranton
Montage Ski Lodge, Moosic
Lackawanna County Stadium, Moosic
Route 307, RR # 7, Box 7159, Daleville
Convenient Food Mart, Highland Avenue, Clarks Summit

During 2004, the Bank contracted space for a free-standing 24-hour ATM located at the Ice Box Sports Complex, Olive Street,
Scranton, PA.

The Bank also owns a commercial facility located at 116 — 118 N. Blakely Street, Dunmore, PA which is leased by a non-related
entity.

Other real estate owned includes all foreclosed properties listed for sale. Foreclosed properties are recorded on the Company’s balance
sheet, upon possession, at the lower of cost or fair value.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The nature of the Company’s business generates some litigation involving matters arising in the ordinary course of business.
However, in the opinion of the Company after consulting with legal counsel, no legal proceedings are pending, which, if determined
adversely to the Company or the Bank, would have a material effect on the Company’s undivided profits or financial condition. No
legal proceedings are pending other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business of the Company and the Bank. In
addition, to Management’s knowledge, no governmental authorities have initiated or contemplated any material legal actions against
the Company or the Bank. :

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted during the quarter ended December 31, 2004 to a vote of our security holders through solicitation of proxies
or otherwise.



PART II

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR THE COMPANY’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The common stock of the Company is traded on the over-the-counter bulletin board under the symbol “FDBC.”
Shareholders requesting information about the Company’s common stock may contact Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., Treasurer.
Requests may be mailed to:

Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.
Blakely and Drinker St.
Dunmore, PA 18512

(570) 342-8281

The following table lists the quarterly cash dividends paid per share and the range of bid and asked prices for the Company's common
stock. Such over-the-counter prices do not include retail mark-ups, markdowns or commissions:

......... 2004.......... 2003,
Prices Dividends Prices Dividends
High Low Paid High Low Paid
1™ Quarter $37.00 $35.25 $0.22 $39.00 $35.50 $0.22
2nd Quarter $36.20 $33.60 $0.22 $37.00 $35.15 $0.22
31 Quarter $35.50 $33.55 $0.22 $37.00 $35.00 $0.22
4" Quarter $36.00 $33.25 $0.22 $37.50 $35.00 $0.22

The Company expects to continue to pay dividends in the future. However, future dividends are dependent upon earnings, tinancial
condition, capital needs of the Company and other factors. The Company’s dividend is dependent on the Bank’s ability to pay
dividends. Prior to the formation of the Company, the Bank paid dividends on a quarterly basis for over thirty years. Dividends are
determined and declared by the Board of Directors. For a further discussion of regulatory capital requirements see Note 14
“Regulatory Matters”, contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements.

The Company has established a dividend reinvestment plan for its shareholders. The plan is designed to make the Company's stock
more available to our shareholders and to raise additional capital for future needs.

The Company had approximately 1,411 shareholders at March 11, 2005 and approximately 1,422 at December 31, 2004. The number

of shareholders is the actual number of individual shareholders of record. Security depositories are considered as individual
shareholders for the purpose of determining the approximate number of shareholders.

ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Set forth below are our selected consolidated financial and other data. This financial data is derived in part from, and should be read
in conjunction with, our consolidated financial statements and related notes:

Balance Sheet Data: 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
TOtal ASSELS v.vveveverievieier et ene v ence s $536,675,138 $575,215,466 $577,993,316 $569,029,838 $491,077.054
Total investment SeCUrities.......co.vvvverereereeeeieennn, 120,237,518 144,407,374 149,549,607 153,973,988 119,756,391
Net loans .o . 381,546,375 366,981,640 354,262,050 353,976,324 333,600,975
Loans available—for-sale . 576,378 19,863,577 28,715,355 16,150,020 9,953,958
Total deposits .........cccoveunan . 365,615,335 401,442,546 413,788,176 407,778,728 339,310,328
Total bOrTowings .......coovevcceverivniecceeeeee e 121,653,234 126,633,012 114,213,014 117,480,988 111,024,721
Total shareholders' equity ....ccoooevvveiiicirceiere e, 46,366,760 43,931,899 45,234,433 40,172,230 37,215,063



Operating Data for the vear ended:

Total Interest INCOME ......verreirreiinieieareiicereeraens $27,395,491 $ 28,462,093 $ 34,567,393 $ 36,379,689 $ 35,085,780
Total interest eXPense..........cvveeiirieerecnnrivercecenenan, 11,180,135 14.237.129 17,882,440 20,853,631 21.468.230
Net INtErest INCOME........covviiviveeeieeceerieeerr e 16,215,356 14,224,964 16,684,953 15,526,058 13,617,550
Provision for 10an 108ses ........ccoovieieimrverrcceccnn 2.150.000 3.715.000 1,664,000 2,474.637 1,158,260
Net interest income after provision for loan losses. 14,065,356 10,509,964 15,020,953 13,051,421 12,459,290
Other INCOME ...c.e.viviivieeieeeeeces e 4,161,402 4,183,137 3,302,749 3,701,578 2,940,009
Other operating eXpense.......ccovenevicriiiiiinn 13.826.690 12.903.361 12,751,174 11.998.997 11.634.280
Income before provision for income taxes.............. 4,400,068 1,789,740 5,572,528 4,754,002 3,765,019
Provision for income taxes . 1.035.594 146.492 1.526,355 905,866 . 582,391
NEE TNCOME oot et ennan $_3.364.474 $ 1.643.248 S 4046173 $ 3,848,136 S 3,182,628
Per Share Data:
Net income per share — basic*.............cooverne. ) 1.84 $ 0.90 ] 2.23 $ 2,12 $ 1.76
Net income per share - diluted*.... $ 1.84 $ 0.90 $ 222 $ 2,12 $ 1.76
Dividends declared.................. $ 1,610423 $ 1,601,898 $ 1,526,371 $ 1,426,097 $ 1,366,075
Dividends per share..........c.ccoovirieriiniieniiecne $ 0.88 $ 0.88 $ 0.84 $ 0.79 $ 0.76
Book value per share........coccccoovieiiicieeeccncnn $ 25.21 N 24.10 $ 24.86 $ 22,08 $ 20.60
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding** 1.830,725 1,820,403 1,817,430 1,811,391 1,803,674
Number of shares outstanding at year-end......... 1,839,572 1,823,043 1,819,376 1,819,168 1.806,274
Ratios:
Return on average assetS.......c...covvrrocencrrrecernnes 0.61% 0.29% 0.70% 0.72% 0.67%
Return on average equity.......c..covieercrciaeenae 7.51% 3.63% 9.47% 9.64% 9.54%
Net interest margin....... . 3.20% 2.74% 3.10% 3.17% 3.14%
Efficiency ratio... . 64.37% 72.32% 63.42% 62.42% 67.66%
EXpense ratio...........ccccccooiviveiivncennn ; 1.69% 1.68% 1.68% 1.68% 1.88%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans............ 1.54% 1.28% 1.01% 1.00% 0.94%
Dividend payout ratio.....ccccooveeiienieiiiiniiennns 47.87% 97.48% 37.72% 37.06% 42.92%
EQUILY [0 @SSEIS......iorieericniiirerccericemre e 8.64% 7.64% 7.83% 7.06% 7.58%
Equity to deposits.......ccooviiiciniiniiii 12.68% 10.94% 10.93% 9.85% 10.97%

* Based on weighted average shares and adjusted for the stock exchange in 2000.
**Based on actual shares outstanding and adjusted for the stock exchange in 2000.

ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains a number of forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the
Exchange Act. These statements may be identified by the use of the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “may,” “outlook,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “should,” “will,” “would” and similar terms and phrases,
including references to assumptions. Forward looking statements include risks and uncertainties.

6 ELINT3 3 ¢ EEIYS l 99 <
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Forward-looking statements are based on various assumptions and analyses made by us in light of management’s experience and its
perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors it believes are appropriate
under the circumstances. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other
factors (many of which are beyond our control) that could cause actual results to differ materially from future results expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements. These factors include, without limitation, the following:

- the timing and occurrence or non-occurrence of events may be subject to circumstances beyond our control;

- there may be increases in competitive pressure among financial institutions or from non-financial institutions;
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- changes in the interest rate environment may reduce interest margins;
- changes in deposit flows, loan demand or real estate values may adversely affect our business;

- changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines may cause our financial condition to be perceived
differently;

- general economic conditions, either nationally or locally in some or all areas in which we do business, or
conditions in the securities markets or the banking industry may be less favorable than we currently anticipate;

- legislative or regulatory changes may adversely affect our business;

- technological changes may be more rapid, difficult or expensive than we anticipate;

- success or consummation of new business initiatives may be more difficult or expensive than we anticipate; or
- acts of war or terrorism.

Management cautions readers not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect analyses only as of the date of
this report. We have no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this
document.

Readers should review the risk factors described in other documents that we file, from time to time with the SEC, including Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and any Current Reports on Form 8-K.

Critical Accounting Policies

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect many of the reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.
Management believes that the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2004 1s adequate and reasonable. Given the very subjective
nature of identifying and valuing loan losses, it is likely that well-informed individuals could make different assumptions, and could,
therefore calculate a materially different allowance value. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans,
changes in economic conditions may necessitate revisions in the future. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of
their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Company to
recognize adjustments to the allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their examination,

Another material estimate is the calculation of fair values of the Company’s investment securities. The Company receives estimated
fair values of investment securities from an independent valuation service. In developing these fair values, the valuation service uses
estimates of cash flows, based on historical performance of similar instruments in similar interest rate environments. Based on
experience, management is aware that estimated fair values of investment securities tend to vary among valuation services.
Accordingly, when selling investment securities, management typically obtains price quotes from more than one source. As described
in Notes | and 3 of the consolidated financial statements, the large majority of the Company’s investment securities are classified as
available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet, with unrealized gains and
losses, net of income tax, reported separately within shareholders’ equity through accumulated other comprehensive income.

The fair value of residential mortgage loans, classified as available-for-sale (AFS), is obtained from the Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA). The fair value of Small Business Administration (SBA) loans, classified as AFS, is obtained from an outside
pricing source. To determine the fair market value of student loans, classified as AFS, the Bank uses the pricing obtained from the
most recent student loans sold from its AFS portfolio. The market to which the Bank sells mortgage and other loans is restricted and
price quotes from other sources are not typically obtained. Further discussion on the accounting treatment of available-for-sale loans
is in the section entitled “Loans-available-for sale”, contained within Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

All significant accounting policies are contained in Note 1 “Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”,
contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements, and incorporated by reference in Part II, Item 8.




The following discussion and analysis presents the significant changes in the financial condition and in the results of operations of the
Company as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and for each of the years then ended. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes included in Part II, Item 8 of this report. )

Comparison of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2004
and 2003 and Results of Operations for each of the Years then Ended

Financial Condition
The following table is a comparison of condensed balance sheet accounts and percentage to total assets at December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002;
(Thousands of Dollars)
...... 2004...... 2003 ...2002.......
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Assets:
Cash and due from banks......ccooevvveiiiieicieececreeene $ 9,013 1.68% $ 13,148 2.29% $ 18,763 3.25%
Interest bearing deposits with
Financial inStitutions .....ccccovoereniiereeeernen s coneceriennnens 1,203 0.22 6,083 1.06 7,456 1.29
INVEStMENT SECUTIIIES ... mevervreirerereeee et ceeeies e e e enee e, 120,238 22.41 144,407 25.10 149,550 25.87
NEELOANS .. ee et nenens 381,546 71.09 366,982 63.80 354,262 61.29
Loans available-for-sale...... 576 0.11 19,864 3.45 28,715 4.97
Accrued interest receivable..... 1,723 0.32 1,807 031 2,347 0.41
Bank premises and equipment ... . 11,163 2.08 12,092 2.10 12,735 2.20
Foreclosed assets held forsale.........ccooevinincnnnen. 213 0.04 467 0.08 437 0.08
Life insurance cash surrender value ................c.ccevvvvnre 7,614 1.42 7,293 1.27 - -
OLhEr ASSELS wovviveeverieieveeereeeeries et esn s er st eeeceneae 3.386 0.63 3.072 0.54 3.728 0.64
TOtal @SSEES......ovicvirricrieeceeeee et $ 536,675 100.00% $575.215 100.00% $577.993 100.00%
Liabilities:
Deposits, non-interest bearing..............c....oveveenviinn $65,358 12.18% $ 64,399 11.20% $ 61,151 10.58%
Certificates of deposit of $100,000
OF MOIE vvvevverrerreieiierrineieenes . 93,986 17.51 112,857 19.62 129,487 22.40
Other interest-bearing deposits .........cocccvcerremnriincenin. 206,272 38.44 224,186 38.96 223,150 38.61
Short-term BOITOWINES ..c..ccveviieriiiiciecr e 50,534 9.42 54,757 9.52 51,213 8.86
Other borrowed funds ..o, 71,119 13.25 71,876 12.50 63,000 10.90
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities.................. 3,039 0.56 3.208 0.56 4.758 0.82
Total liabilities 490,308 91.36 531,283 9236 532,759 92.17
Shareholders’ equity 46.367 8.64 43,932 7.64 45234 7.83
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ......eceruees $536,615 100.00% $575,215 100.00% $577,993 160.00%

A comparison of net changes in selected balance sheet categories as of December 31, are as follows:

Earning Short-term Other
Assets % Assets * % Deposits % Borrowings % Borrowings %
2004 $(38,540,328) ()% $(35,884,098) (1% $(35,827,211) (9% $ (4,222,932) 8)% $ (756,846) (1)%
2003 (2,777.850) (1) (3,007,038) (1) (12,345,630)  (3) 3,543,964 7 8,876,034 14
2002 8,963,478 2 7,325,219 1 6,009,448 1 (3,267,974) 6) - -
2001 77,952,784 16 60,585,502 13 68,468,400 20 6,456,267 13 - -
2000 44,507,549 10 44,562,595 10 44,943.343 15 (12,224,325) (20) 5,695,000 10

* - Earning assets exclude loans placed on non-accrual status.
Deposits

The Bank is a community-based commercial financial institution that offers a variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest rates
and terms. Deposit products include passbook and statement savings accounts, NOW, money market, demand deposits and
certificates of deposit accounts. The flow of deposits is significantly influenced by general economic conditions, changes in
prevailing interest rates, pricing and competition.



Most of the Bank’s deposits are obtained from the communities surrounding its 12 branch offices. We attempt to attract and retain
deposit customers via sales and marketing efforts with new products, quality service, competitive rates and long-standing customer
relationships.

To determine deposit product interest rates, the Bank considers local competition, market yields and the rates charged for alternative

sources of funding such as borrowings. Although we have experienced a continued intense competition for deposits, we have not
increased rates significantly as we only consider cost effective strategies in a relatively low, yet rising, interest rate environment.

The following table represents the components of total deposits as of December 31, 2004 and comparative funding changes from

December 31, 2003:

Dollar Percent
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 change change
Non-interest-bearing deposits
Personal $ 28,927,588 § 26,206,156 2,721,432 10.38%
Non-personal 29,248,882 29,561,169 (312,287) -1.06%
Public fund 2,479,373 3,635,074 (1,155,701) -31.79%
Bank checks 4,701,692 4,996,259 (294,567) -5.90%
Total $ 65,357,535 § 64,398,658 958,877 1.49%
Time deposits
of $100,000 or greater
Personal $ 61,694837 § 78,560,841 (16,866,004) -21.47%
Non-personal 17,749,896 16,057,391 1,692,505 10.54%
Public fund 9,023,956 12,412,714 (3,388,758) -27.30%
IRA's 5,517,344 5,826,474 (309,130) 5.31%
Total $ 93,986,033 § 112,857,420 (18,871,387) -16.72%
Other interest-bearing deposits
Time deposits less than $100,000:
Personal $ 66,918,765 $ 83,057,733 (16,138,968) -19.43%
Non-personal 4,024,801 5,387,417 (1,362,616} -25.29%
Public fund 662,876 597,772 65,104 10.89%
IRA's 19,090,551 19,694,374 (603,823) -3.07%
sub total 90,696,993 108,737,296 (18,040,303) -16.59%
NOW accounts 41,421,525 44,290,199 (2,868,674) -6.48%
Money market deposits 27,606,102 28,284,225 (678,123) -2.40%
Savings and clubs 46,547,147 42,874,748 3,672,399 8.57%
Total $ 206,271,767 8§ 224,186,468 (17,914,701) -7.99%
Total deposits
Noninterest-bearing deposits 3 65,357,535 § 64,398 658 958,877 1.49%
Interest-bearing deposits 300,257,800 337,043,888 (36,786,088) -10.91%
Total $ 365,615,335 % 401,442 546 (35,827,211) -8.92%
Public funds
Noninterest-bearing $ 2,479373 $ 3,635,074 (1,155,701) -31.79%
Certificates of deposit 9,686,832 13,010,486 (3,323,654) -25.55%
NOW accounts 8,406,827 9,850,661 (1,443,834) -14.66%
Money market deposits 4,710,720 8,029,671 (3,318,951) -41.33%
Savings and clubs 1,266,834 3,278,114 (2,011,280) -61.35%
Total $ 26,550,586 § 37,804,006 (11,253,420) -29.77%
Total assets $ 536,675,138 $ 575,215,466
Total deposits to total assets 68.13% 69.79%
Public funds to total deposits 7.26% 9.42%
Public funds to total assets 4.95% 6.57%
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Total deposits decreased $35,827,000 or 9% during 2004 to $365,315,000. Total average deposits decreased $29,619,000 or 7% from
$412,068,000 at December 31, 2003 to $382,449,000 at December 31, 2004. The decrease in deposits was primarily due to a
$36,911,000 decrease in certificate of deposits (CDs) to $184,683,000 at December 31, 2004 from $221,595,000 at December 31,
2003. Core deposits, which excludes time deposits of $100,000 and greater, decreased $16,956,000 or 6% during 2004 to
$271,629,000. Approximately $18,000,000 of this decline was caused by time deposit run-off. NOW and money market accounts
decreased $2,869,000 and $678,000, respectively while non-interest bearing and savings deposits increased $4,631,000, in total.
However, on average, money market accounts increased $11,800,000. In 2003, the Bank developed a tiered money market checking
account which customers found attractive through 2004 and helped capture time deposit run-off.

Non-interest bearing deposits (DDAs) are an important source of funds for the Bank because they lower the overall cost of funds. The
average balance of these accounts increased $5,056,000 or 8%, during 2004. The Bank is largely dependent upon its base of
competitively priced core deposits to provide a source of low-cost funding. The Bank attempts to retain and grow its customer base
through a combination of rate, product diversification, quality of service, convenience and a stable and experienced staff.

During 2004, the Bank’s deposit mix continued to be heavily concentrated in time deposits but relative to total deposits, continued its
downward trend. As of December 31, 2004, time deposits represented 51% of total deposits, down from 55% at December 31, 2003.
Management believes a combination of the Bank’s strategy to exit high-cost competitive pricing pressure and recovery in the financial
markets has caused a sustained period of time deposit outflow, albeit to a level that is more cost effective as evident by improvement
in the Bank’s interest rate spread and margin. Approximately 44% of the current time deposit portfolio, representing 22% of total
deposits, will mature in 2005 and provide an opportunity for the Bank to retain these deposits at competitive rates. The Bank has
implemented several new relationship programs designed to attract both low- and no-interest products to the Bank while preserving its
cultivated reputation of outstanding customer service.

The maturity distribution of time deposits at December 31, 2004 is as follows:

Three months Three to six  Six to twelve Over
or less months months twelve months Total
Time deposits of $100,000 or greater  $12,920,031 $13,653,882  §16,921,988  $ 50,490,132 $ 93,986,033
Time deposits of less than $100,000 9,785,780 11,928,364 16,551,450 52.431.399 90,696,993
Total time deposits $22.705.811 $25.582.246 $33.473.438  $102,921,531 $184.683,026

The over-twelve month maturity distribution of time deposits represents 28.2% of total deposits at December 31, 2004. The Bank
believes this category provides a stable source of funds for future requirements.

Short-term borrowings

In addition to deposits, other funding sources available to the Bank are overnight federal funds purchased from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB) and repurchase agreements (Repos) with various individuals, businesses and public entities. The
Bank will use overnight funding from the FHLB to fund asset growth and deposit run-off. Repos, offered in both sweep and fixed-
term products, are non-insured interest-bearing liabilities that have a security interest in qualified pledged investments of the Bank. A
sweep account is designed to ensure that on a daily basis, an attached DDA is adequately funded and excess DDA funds are
transferred, or swept, into an interest-bearing overnight Repo. In addition, the sweep will transfer funds to the DDA as necessary, to
cover checks presented for payment. As of December 31, 2004, sweep accounts represented approximately 66% of total Repos. Due
to the nature of the sweep product, this account is more volatile than a fixed-term Repo. Overnight borrowings and Repos are
included with short-term borrowings on the consolidated balance sheet. Refer to Note 7 “Short-term Borrowings”, contained within
the notes to consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8.

Customer liquidity, investment needs and negotiated interest rates caused a net increase in Repos from $39,363,000 at December 31,
2003, to $40,684,000 at December 31, 2004. However, the balance in Repos will fluctuate daily due to the nature of the daily-sweep
product which is dependent on the level of available funds in customer DDAs.

Funding requirements of the Bank, due largely to the reduction in deposits, necessitated $8,760,000 in overnight borrowings from the
FHLB, at December 31, 2004. FHLB overnight borrowings at December 31, 2003 amounted to $14,920,000.
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Long-term debt

Long-term debt consists of borrowings from the FHLB. The weighted-average rate on funds borrowed at December 31, 2004, was
5.06%. The weighted-average rate is 28 basis points below the tax-equivalent yield of 5.34% on average earning-assets for the year
ended December 31, 2004. Rates on $58,000,000 of “convertible select” advances are adjustable quarterly, should market rates
increase beyond the issue’s original rate. At December 31, 2004, similar FHLB advances were 261 basis points below the average
rate paid by the Bank. The Bank is deterred from paying off the current borrowings by significant prepayment penalties. Rates
currently being quoted by the FHLB could increase above the rates currently paid on these borrowings. In the event this was to occur,
the Bank has the option, at that time, to repay or to renegotiate the converted advance.

During the third quarter of 2004, the Bank entered into a leveraged transaction and borrowed a total of $5,000,000 to purchase
preferred term securities. The three-month interest rate reset intervals for both the purchased securities and the borrowing that funded
them, are evenly matched and therefore will be accretive to earnings. The new borrowings mature in 2006 and 2007 and carry a
weighted-average interest rate of 2.61% at December 31, 2004. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2004, the Bank paid off a
matured $5,000,000 borrowing that carried an interest rate of 5.92%. The effect of these transactions helped reduce the overall
weighted-average rate of the Bank’s long term debt. At December 31, 2004, the Bank had the ability to borrow an additional
$99,947.000 at the FHLB. The FHLB has short-, medium- and long-term funding products available to the Bank.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Time deposit run-off and rate reductions on high-cost funds caused accrued interest payable to decrease from $1,270,000 at December
31, 2003, to $985,000 at December 31, 2004.

At December 31, 2004 other liabilities included a balance due on a $453,000 retirement obligation recorded in the second half of
2004. The liability represents the present value of an obligation for certain benefits, to be paid periodically in future years. Based
upon the subjective nature of the medical insurance reimbursement portion of the liability, as it relates to future premiums, and the
uncertainty of the duration of the future period to be covered, the Company may find it necessary to increase or decrease the accrual
accordingly.

Assets:

Investments

The Bank’s investment policy is designed to complement its lending activities, generate a favorable return without incurring undue
interest rate and credit risk, manage interest rate sensitivity, provide monthly cash flow and manage liquidity at acceptable levels. In
establishing investment strategies, the Bank considers its business and growth or restructuring plans, the economic environment, the
interest rate sensitivity position, the types of securities held, permissible purchases, credit quality, maturity and re-pricing terms, call
or average-life intervals and investment concentrations. The policy prescribes permissible investment categories that meet the policy
standards and Management is responsible for structuring and executing the specific investment purchases within these policy
parameters. Management buys and sells investment securities from time-to-time depending on market conditions, business trends,
liquidity needs, capital levels and structuring strategies. Investment security purchases provide a way to quickly invest excess
liquidity in order to generate additional earnings. The Bank generally earns a positive interest spread by assuming interest rate risk
and using deposits and/or borrowings to purchase securities with longer maturities.

At the time of purchase, Management classifies investment securities into one of three categories: trading, AFS or, held-to-maturity
(HTM). To date, management has not purchased any securities for trading purposes. Most of the securities purchased are classified as
AFS even though there is no immediate intent to sell them. The AFS designation affords management the flexibility to sell securities
and position the balance sheet in response to capital levels, liquidity needs or changes in market conditions. Securities AFS are
recorded at market values in the consolidated balance sheet with an adjustment to shareholders’ equity, net of tax and is presented
under the caption “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)”. Securities designated as HTM are carried at their amortized
cost.

Total investments declined $24,171,000, net of a $170,000 appreciation in the market value of AFS investments. The carrying value
of investment securities, at December 31, 2004, was $120,237,000 or 22% of total assets compared to $144,407,000 or 25% as
December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2004 approximately 54% of the investment portfolio was comprised of mortgage-backed
securities that amortize and provide monthly cash flow. At that same time, agency bonds and municipal bonds comprised 25% and
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9% of the investment portfolio, respectively. During 2004, the Bank increased its position in preferred term securities. See the
discussion under “Long-term debt” above for a further discussion on this transaction. Preferred Term Securities, Ltd. pools trust
preferred securities issued by bank and insurance companies. These issuers utilize trust preferred securities because they are afforded
favorable capital treatment and provided a tax deduction for the interest paid. Preferred Term Securities, Ltd., in turn, issue securities
that are backed by obligations of these issuers, which are asset backed securities that have multiple classes, each with different credit
ratings. The fact that these securities are backed by multiple issuers with geographic dispersion, have size limits per issuer which
enhance credit appeal, afforded lower regulatory risk-weighting and float with out a cap at three-month LIBOR make these securities
attractive within a low interest rate environment.

With the relatively low, but increasing, market interest rate environment throughout 2004, higher yielding U.S. Government Agency
bonds along with state and municipal securities of $14,195,000 were called. This compares to $24,810,000 in 2003 and $90,600,000
in 2002. The increase in the U.S. Treasury yields during the second half of 2003 resulted in a decrease in refinance activity and
related cash flows during the fourth quarter of 2003 and continued during 2004. As a result, prepayments on the Bank’s portfolio of
mortgage-backed securities have subsided significantly. Prepayments during 2004 amounted to $18,643,000, compared to
$60,127,000 in 2003.

During the first half of 2004, interest rates throughout the U.S. Treasury yield curve (the “yield curve”) increased. The Federal Open
Market Committee (the “FOMC™) raised short-term interest rates five times (125 basis points) since the end of June 2004. While
short-term U.S. Treasury yields have shown somewhat similar increases during the second half of 2004, medium- and long-term rates
have somewhat decreased resulting in a flattening of the yield curve. Accordingly, the Bank used a significant amount of the cash
flows from its investment portfolio to fund high-cost time deposit outflow and repayment of overnight borrowings rather than
redeploy the funds in the securities markets. The Bank will continue to monitor the investment markets but will remain cautious about
adding securities until a meaningful accretion to earnings can be achieved.

A comparison of investments at December 31, for the three previous periods is as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
U.S. government agencies $ 30,497,185 2536% $ 36,323,404 2515% $ 13,275,625 8.88%
Mortgage-backed securities 64,457,326 53.61 85,598,752  59.28 118,614,057 79.31
State & municipal subdivisions 11,199,084 9.32 13,275,289 9.19 9,736,815 6.51
Preferred term securities 9,034,375 7.51 4,007,507 2.78 3,990,000 2.67
Equity securities: regulatory 4,568,700 3.80 4,753,300 3.29 3,604,400 2.41
other 480.848 0.40 449,122 0.31 328.710 0.22
Total $ 120,237,518 100.00% $ 144,407,374 100.00% $ 149,549,607 100.00%

The distribution of debt securities by stated maturity date at December 31, 2004 is as follows:

One year One through Five through More than
or less five years ten years ten years Total
U.S. government agencies $- $4,946,069 $17,789,632 $ 7,761,484 $ 30,497,185
Mortgage-backed securities - 391,330 19,919,218 44,146,778 64,457,326
State & municipal subdivisions - 446,147 1,562,265 9,190,672 11,199,084
Preferred term securities - 9,034,375 9,034,375

Total debt securities $5,783,546 $39.271.115 $ 70,133,309 $115,187.970

AFS securities are stated net of unrealized gains and losses. As of December 31, 2004, AFS debt securities were recorded with a net
unrealized loss in the amount of $355,000. At December 31, 2004 AFS equity securities were recorded at $481,000 including an
unrealized gain of $202,000. In addition, the Company had $4,568,000 of restricted regulatory equity securities, recorded at cost.
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The tax-equivalent yield on debt securities by stated maturity date at December 31, 2004, is as follows:

One year One through  Five through More than
or less five years ten vears ten years Total
U.S. government agencies -% 3.02% 3.12% 3.98% 3.32%
Mortgaged-backed securities - 5.40 3.66 4.85 4.48
State & municipal subdivisions - 5.66 493 5.84 5.71
Preferred term securities - - - 4.12 4.12
Total debt securities 0.00% 3.37% 3.46% 4.799 4.26%

In the above table, the book yields on state & municipal subdivisions were adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis using the corporate federal tax rate of 34%.
In addition, average yields on securities AFS are based on amortized cost and do not reflect unrealized gains or losses.

Loans and leases

Loans and leases, net of unearned income, increased $15,555,000 or 4.2% from $371,979,000 at December 31, 2003, to $387,534,000
at December 31, 2004. Gross loans represented 72.2% of total assets at December 31, 2004.

In 2004, the Bank originated $34,981,000 of commercial loans, $31,368,000 of mortgage loans, including $13,066,000 of unfunded
real estate construction lines, and $19,671,000 of consumer loans. This compares to $37,797,000, $40,028,000 and $24,041,000,
respectively, in 2003. In addition for 2004, the Bank committed to additional funding in the amounts of $20,799,000 for commercial
borrowers, $10,489,000 in home equity lines and $83,000 for consumer borrowers. The increase in the portfolio was primarily in
residential real estate due the transfer of mortgage loans from available-for-sale to the loan portfolio which is described in more detail
in the, “Loans available-for-sale,” section, below.

Loan refinancing to lower interest rates that began in 2002 and accelerated through 2003 has subsided in 2004 - in response to
anticipated increases in short-term interest rates and volatility in the mid- and long-term rates of U.S. Treasury yield curve. The Bank
expects the loan prepayment and refinance activity to be minimal in the near-term.

Commercial and Commercial Real Estate Loans:
Net of scheduled principal curtailments (run-off), loan participation sales and pre-payments, commercial loans increased $692,000
during 2004. This increase was primarily due to increased lending within the small business community.

The Bank continues to originate loans using the Small Business Administration (SBA) guaranteed loan program. Under this program,
in return for the Bank funding a qualified loan, the SBA guarantees a material portion of the principal balance to the Bank. As of
December 31, 2004, the Bank had $2,002,000 in SBA guaranteed loans outstanding.

Tax-free industrial development loans, a component of commercial loans, made to or backed by local municipalities increased from
$9,020,000 at December 31, 2003 to $9,898,000 at December 31, 2004. The increase in this sector was due mainly to fund loans to
local municipalities for various infrastructure and sustaining projects.

Residential Real Estate Loans:

Residential real estate loans increased $14,217,000 or 18.4% to $91,294,000. These loans increased due to the transfer, from the
available-for-sale to the loan portfolio which is described in more detail in the, “Loans available-for-sale,” section, below. In addition,
originations of these loans remained strong due to the sustained relative low interest rate environment.

Consumer Loans and Direct Financing Leases:

Consumer loans and direct-financing leases decreased $2,905,000 or 4.4% during 2004. The home equity instaliment loan portfolio,
included within the consumer loans, experienced declines due to prior year’s refinancing into lower rate mortgages. In addition, the
combined effect of run-off and decision to no longer originate direct financing leases brought about the overall decline in consumer

loans.
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Real Estate Construction Loans:

Real estate construction loans increased $3,353,000 or 46.1% during 2004. Real estate construction loans consist of $8,095,000 for

residential construction and $2,526,000 for commercial real estate construction. These loans fund residential and commercial

construction projects and then convert to a residential mortgage or to a commercial real estate loan after one year from the origination

date. Generally, the converted loans will bear the same terms as the residential or the commercial construction loan.

A comparison of loans at December 31, for the five previous periods is as follows (all loans are domestic):

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Residential real estate $ 91,294,401 $ 77,077,315  $ 78,132,262 $ 90,766,420  $104,618,240
Consumer 61,487,608 62,919,070 64,300,368 73,756,002 71,765,719
Commercial and
commercial real estate 221,968,137 221,275,922 202,974,155 179,043,816 146,610,685
Direct financing leases 2,211,978 3,685,802 6,578,720 9,961,967 12,733,075
Real estate construction 10,620,472 7,267,616 6,797,002 5,446,870 2,971,504
Gross loans 387,582,596 372,225,725 358,782,507 358,975,075 338,699,223
Less:
Unearned discount 48,423 247,119 620,704 1,256,818 1,833,968
Allowance for loan losses 5.987.798 4,996,966 3,899,753 3,741,933 3,264,280

Net loans $381.546,375  $366,981,640  $354,262.050  $353.976.324  $333.600,975
Loans available-for-sale $ 576378 $ 19863577 $ 28715355 $ 16,150,020 § 9,953,958
A comparison of gross loans by percent at year-end for the five previous periods is as follows:

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Residential real estate 23.56% 20.71% 21.78% 25.28% 30.89%
Consumer 15.86 16.90 17.92 20.55 21.19

Commercial and

commercial real estate 57.27 59.45 56.57 49 88 43.29
Direct financing leases 0.57 0.99 1.83 2.7 3.76
Real estate construction 2.74 1.95 1.90 1.52 0.87

Gross loans 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

There are no concentrations of loans to a number of borrowers engaged in similar activities exceeding 10.00% of total loans that are
not otherwise disclosed as a category in tables above.

The following table sets forth the maturity distribution of select components of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2004. Excluded
from the table are non-construction real estate loans, consumer loans and direct financing leases (amounts in thousands):

One year One to five More than
or less years five years Total
Commercial and commercial
real estate loans $37.579 $39,753 $144,636  $221,968
Real estate construction 10,620 - - 10.620
Total $48.199 $39,753 $144.636 $232,588

Real estate construction loans are included in the one-year or less category since, by their nature, these loans are converted into
commercial and commercial real estate loans within one year from the date the real estate construction loan was consummated. Upon
conversion, the commercial and commercial real estate loans would normally mature after five years.
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The following table sets forth the sensitivity changes in interest rates for commercial and commercial real estate loans at December
31, 2004 (amounts in thousands):

One to five More than
years five vears Total
Fixed interest rate $ 8,798 $ 13,894 $ 22,692
Variable interest rate 30,955 130,742 161,697
Total $39,753 $144,636 $184.389

Non-refundable fees or costs associated with all loan originations are deferred. Using the principal reduction method, the Bank
releases the deferral as a charge or credit to loan interest income over the life of the loan.

There are no concentrations of loans that, if lost, would have a material adverse effect on the business of the Bank. The Bank's loan
portfolio does not have a material concentration within a single industry or group of related industries that are vulnerable to the risk of
a near-term severe negative business impact.

Loans available-for-sale

Generally, upon origination, certain residential mortgages, the guaranteed portions of SBA loans and student loans are classified as
AFS. Should market rates increase, fixed-rate loans and loans not immediately scheduled to re-price would no longer produce yields
consistent with the current market. In a declining interest rate environment, the Bank would be exposed to prepayment risk and, as
rates on adjustable rate loans decrease interest income would be negatively affected. Consideration is also given to the current
liquidity position and projected future Hquidity needs. To better manage interest rate and prepayment risk, loans meeting these
conditions may be classified as AFS. The carrying value of loans AFS are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair market value.
If the fair values of these loans fall below their original cost, the difference is written down and charged to current earnings. Any
subsequent appreciation in the portfolio is credited to current earnings but only to the extent of previous write-downs.

Loans AFS, at December 31, 2004, were $576,000, with a corresponding fair value of $582,000 compared to $19,864,000 and
$20,501,000, respectively at December 31, 2003. During the second quarter of 2004, the Bank transferred higher yielding mortgage
loans with relatively short lives and aggregate principal balances of $11,246,000 and aggregate market values of $11,446,000 from
AFS to its loan portfolio. Similarly, during the third quarter of 2004, the Bank transferred SBA loans, with aggregate principal and
market values of $1,561,000 and $1,634,000, respectively, from AFS to its loan portfolio. In both cases, the loans were transferred at
the lower of cost or estimated market value and therefore, no gain or loss was recognized. The Bank has both the ability and intent to
hold these loans until maturity and they will continue to provide the Bank with yields in excess of the rates in effect at the time of
transfer. By transferring the loans from the AFS to the loan portfolio, the Bank will no longer be required to apply lower of cost or
market treatment to the principal balances. Had the transferred loans remained in the AFS portfolio, in an increasing interest rate
environment, the loans could attain market values significantly below their principal balances and, as a result, could create a
significant drag on current earnings. During 2004, residential mortgages, student loans and SBA loans with principal balances of
$14,307,000, $1,128,000 and $61,000, respectively were sold into the secondary market and gains of approximately $195,000 have
been recognized.

The Bank retains the mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) on loans sold into the secondary market. MSRs are retained so that the Bank
can continue the personal relationship developed with its customers. At December 31, 2004, the servicing portfolio balance of sold
residential mortgage loans was $57,939,000. For a further discussion on MSRs, see Note 4, “Loans and leases” contained within the
notes to consolidated financial statements in Part 11, Item &.

Allowance for loan losses

Management continually evaluates the credit quality of the Bank’s loan portfolio and performs a formal review of the allowance for
loan losses (the allowance) adequacy, on a quarterly basis. The allowance reflects management’s best estimate of the amount of credit
losses in the loan portfolio. Management’s judgment is based on the evaluation of individual loans, past experience, the assessment of
current economic conditions and other relevant factors including the amounts and timing of cash flows expected to be received on
impaired loans. Those estimates may be susceptible to significant change. The provision for loan losses represents the amount
necessary to maintain an appropriate allowance. Loan losses are charged directly against the allowance when loans are deemed to be
uncollectible. Recoveries on previously charged-off loans are added to the allowance when received.
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Management applies two primary components during the loan review process to determine proper allowance levels. The two levels
are specific loan loss allocation for loans that are deemed impaired and a general loan loss allocation for those loans not specifically
allocated. The methodology to analyze the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

Identification of specific problem loans by loan category by credit administration;

Calculation of specific allowances required based on collateral and other persuasive evidence;

Identification of loans collateralized by cash and cash equivalents;

Determination of remaining homogenous pools by loan category and eliminating loans collateralized by cash and cash
equivalents and eliminating loans with specific allocations;

Application of historical loss percentages (three-year average) to pools to determine the allowance allocation; and

e Application of qualitative factor adjustment percentages to historical losses for trends or changes in the loan portfolio.

Allocation of the allowance for different categories of loans is based on the methodology used by the Bank, as explained above. A
key element of the methodology to determine the allowance is the Company’s credit risk evaluation process, which includes credit
risk-grading of individual commercial loans. Commercial loans are assigned credit risk grades based on the Company’s assessment of
conditions that affect the borrower’s ability to meet its contractual obligations under the loan agreement. That process includes
reviewing borrowers’ current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information and other
information specific to each individual borrower. The changes in the allocations from period to period are based upon reviews of the
loan and lease portfolios.

Charge-offs, net of recoveries, for the year ended December 31, 2004, were $1,159,000, compared to $2,618,000 in 2003. Combined
consumer loan and lease financing net charge-offs decreased from $1,019,000, through December 31, 2003, to $364,000, through
December 31, 2004. Commercial loan net charge-offs were $549,000 for the full year 2004 compared to $1,130,000 for 2003.
Mortgage loan net-charge-offs were $246,000 in 2004 compared to $469,000 in 2003. The addition of a seasoned loan workout
specialist and efforts of collections and credit administration improved the level of net charge-offs in 2004. For further discussion on
the provision for loan losses, see the “Provision for loan losses” located in the Results of Operations section of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis contained herein.

For a further discussion of delinquencies and net charge-offs, see the section entitled “Non-performing assets.” Additional discussion
is in Note 1 “Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Allowance for Loan Losses” and Note 4 “Loans
and Leases” contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements, and incorporated herein by reference.

Management believes that the current balance in the allowance for loan losses of $5,988,000 is sufficient to withstand the identified
potential credit quality issues that may arise and are inherent to the portfolio. Currently, management is unaware of any potential
problem loans that have not been reviewed. Potential problem loans are those where there is known information that leads
Management to believe repayment of principal and/or interest is in jeopardy and the loans are currently neither on non-accrual status
nor past due 90 days or more. However, there could be certain instances which become identified over the upcoming year that may
require additional charge-offs and/or increases to the allowance. The ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans was 1.54% at
December 31, 2004 compared to 1.28% at December 31, 2003.

-17 -




The following table sets forth the activity in the allowance for loan losses and certain key ratios for the periods indicated (dollars in
thousands):

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Balance at beginning of period e $4.997 $3.900 $3.742 $3.264 $3,172
Charge-offs:
Commercial and all other..........cccoovniniin . 775 1,334 928 1,003 602
Real @S1aER ...c.uoiiiiiiietiei et 266 503 40 119 75
CONSUMET ..o 480 1,167 850 909 456
Lease financing ..o _ 85 _ 92 _ 131 _ 180 _ 18
TOtal .o 1,606 3.096 ) 1,949 2211 1,151
Recoveries:
Commercial and all other............ccoooviviviii 226 204 359 86 14
Real estate ..o 20 34 - 3 17
CONSUMET .ttt 178 230 69 108 53
Lease fiNancing.......cccoovvieiieeeirinoni e eeecnens 23 10 __ 15 17 1
TOTAL.oi e 447 _478 443 _214 __ 85
Net charge-offs ..o 1.159 2.618 1,506 1.997 1,066
Provision charged to operations..........cc.c.ccocoeeevnnan. _2.150 3715 _1.664 2475 _1.158
Balance at end of period .......ccooooovieiiiiiiie 35,988 $4.997 $3.900 3,742 $3,264
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding ........... 0.30% 0.68% 0.40% 0.56% 0.33%
Allowance for loan loss to net charge-offs .............. S17x 1.91x 2.59x 1.87x 3.06x
Allowance for loan loss to total gross..........c.ccevevi.. 1.54% 1.28% 1.01% 1.00% 0.94%
Loans 30 - 89 days past due and accruing................. $4,317 $3,975 $6,047 $7,156 $ 11,049
Loans 90 days or more past due and accruing .......... $ 557 $ 958 $2,599 $5,398 $ 1,493
Allowance for loan loss to loans 90 days or

more past due and accruing........cocoevvvveeinrne e 10.75x 5.22x 1.50x 0.69x 2.19x
Non-accruing 10ans ..........occoovvieeioieeieceecee e $9,904 $7,323 $4,000 $4914 $2.287
Allowance for loan loss to non-accruing loans......... 0.60x 0.68x 0.98x 0.76x 1.43x
Allowance for loan loss to non-performing loans..... 57.24% 60.34% 59.09% 36.29% 86.37%
Average net 10ans. ..., $381,366 $383,226 $380,892 $352,230 $325,163

The allowance for loan losses can generally absorb losses throughout the loan and lease portfolios. However, in some instances an
allocation is made for specific loans or groups of loans. Allocation of the allowance for loan losses for different categories of loans is
based on the methodology used by the Bank, as previously explained. The changes in the allocations from year to year are based upon
year-end reviews of the loan and lease portfolios.
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Allocation of the allowance among major categories of loans for the past five years is summarized below. This table should not be
interpreted as an indication that charge-offs in future periods will occur in these amounts or proportions, or that the allocation indicates
future charge-off trends. The portion of the allowance designated as unallocated is within the Company’s policy guidelines. Prior to
2003, consumer loans included credit card receivables:

Category 2004 % 2003 % 2002 % 2001 % 2000 %
Residential real estate $ 451,349 7.54 $ 354,207 7.09 § 383,858 9.84 S 269,490 7.20 $ 117,534 3.60
Consumer 966,081 16.13 884,689 17.70 1,092,140 28.01 959,408 25.64 736,613 22.57
Commercial and

commercial real estate 4,349,227 72.63 3,699,488 74,04 2,198,783 56.38 2,197,365 58.72 2,270,663 69.56
Direct financing leases 40,891 0.69 42,706 0.85 81,664 2.09 136,091 3.64 131,150 4.02
Real estate construction 27,523 0.46 15,876 0.32 - - - - - -
Unallocated 152,727 2.55 - 143,307 3.68 179,579 4.80 8.320 0.25

Total 35,987,798  100.00% $4.996,966 100.00% $3.899,752 100.00% $3.741.933 100.00% $3,264,280  100.00%

Allowance for loan losses based upon the commercial loan portfolio comprised 73%, or $4,349,000, of the total allowance for loan
losses at December 31, 2004. Although the Bank identified 34 commercial loan relationships which comprises most of this allowance,
the bulk of the allowance fell among only several large non-performing relationships. Collateral values were prudently valued to
provide a conservative and realistic value of the collateral supporting these loans. The allocations to the other categories of loans are
adequate compared to the actual three-year historical net charge-offs.

Non-performing assets

The Bank defines non-performing assets as accruing loans past due 90 days or more, non-accrual loans, restructured loans, other real
estate owned and repossessed assets. As of December 31, 2004, non-performing assets represented 1.99% of total assets compared to
1.52% at December 31, 2003.

The following table sets forth non-performing assets at December 31 (dollars in thousands):

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Net loans, including loans available-for-sale $382.123 $386.846 $382.977 $370.126 $343,555
Loans past due 90 days or more and accruing § 557 $ 958  $2.599  $5,398 $1,493
Non-accrual loans 9.904 7,323 4.000 4914 2,287
Total non-performing loans 10,461 8,281 6,599 10,312 3,780
Restructured loans - - 1,474 - -
Other real estate owned 163 394 262 465 353
Repossessed assets 50 73 175 158 -
Total non-performing assets $10,674 $8,748 $8,510 $10,935 $4,133
Non-accrual loans to net loans 2.59% 1.89% 1.04% 1.33% 0.67%
Non-performing assets to net loans, foreclosed real estate
and repossessed assets 2.79% 2.26% 2.22% 2.95% 1.20%
Non-performing assets to total assets 1.99% 1.52% 1.47% 1.92% 0.84%
Non-performing loans to net loans 2.74% 2.14% 1.72% 2.79% 1.10%

In the internal review of loans for both delinquency and collateral sufficiency, management concluded that there were an above
average number of loans that lacked the ability to repay in accordance with contractual terms. The decision to place loans or leases on
a non-accrual status is made on an individual basis after considering factors pertaining to each specific loan.

The majority of non-performing loans for the period is attributed to commercial business loans, indirect auto lending and real estate
loans in the process of foreclosure. Most of these loans are collateralized and some of the commercial loans are guaranteed by
governmental agencies and the Bank’s loss exposure is reduced accordingly. In 2004, non-performing loans increased $2,180,000, or
26%, to $10,461,000. Approximately $7,997,000 of non-accrual loans were added during 2004 of which $687,000 was subsequently
collected. The increase was primarily in commercial loans caused mostly by a single relationship with two loans amounting to
$4,825,000. The loans in this relationship were subsequently refinanced and are expected to return to performing status once a
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satisfactory repayment history is evidenced. The increase in non-accrual loans was partially offset by total payofts or pay downs of
$2,101,000, charge offs of $961,000, $204,000 in transfers to foreclosed assets and $1,463,000 of loans that have migrated to
performing status. As a result, the percentage of non-performing loans to net loans has increased from 2.14% at December 31, 2003,
to 2.74% at December 31, 2004.

Repossessed assets consist of previously financed vehicles held for sale. Subsequent to the loan or lease, the borrower or lessee
defaulted on their contract and the Company repossessed the unit. Repossessed assets are sold through either a private or public sale
and any deficiency balance from the sale of the asset is charged to the allowance for loan losses.

Payments received on non-accrual loans are recognized on a cash basis. Payments are first applied against the outstanding principal
balance until the balance is satisfied. Subsequent payments are then recorded as interest income and finally late charges. During
2004, the Bank collected $419,000 of interest income recognized on the cash basis. Interest income that would have been recorded in
2004, if non-accrual loans were current, was $942,000.

Bank premises and equipment, net

The Bank’s premises and equipment decreased $929,000 due primarily to depreciation. During 2004, the Bank purchased
approximately $278,000 in equipment compared to $621,000 in 2003,

Foreclosed assets held for sale

Real estate acquired through foreclosure decreased by $231,000, due to the sale of foreclosed properties during the year. An increase
in the turn-around time on sales of vehicles has resulted in a net decrease of $23,000 in other repossessed assets.

Terminated lease assets held for sale

Terminated lease assets are vehicles that were lease-financed by the Company with contractual terms fulfilled. Pursuant the lease
agreement, the vehicles are returned to the Company and recorded on the books in other assets at the residual value. These vehicles
are subsequently sold as soon as practicable. The difference between sales price and residual value, if any, is charged against current
earnings. Simultaneously, a claim is submitted to the Company’s residual insurance carrier for payment. Receipt of any residual
mnsurance proceeds is then credited to current earnings.

Cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance

During February 2003, the Bank purchased $7,000,000 of bank owned life insurance (BOLI) for a chosen group of employees, namely
its officers, where the Bank is the owner and beneficiary of the policies. BOLI is classified as a non-interest earning asset. Increases
in the cash surrender value are recorded as non-interest income. The BOLI is profitable from the appreciation of the cash surrender
values of the pool of insurance, and its tax-free advantage to the Bank. This profitability is used to offset a portion of current and
future employee benefit costs. The BOLI can be liquidated, if necessary, with tax costs associated. However, the Bank intends to
hold this pool of insurance, because it provides income that enhances the Bank’s capital position. Therefore, the Bank has not
provided for deferred income taxes on the earnings from the increase in cash surrender value.

Results of Operations

Earnings Summary:

General

The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on its net interest income. Net interest income is the difference between
interest income and interest expense. Interest income is generated from yields on interest-earning assets which consist principally of
loans and investment securities. Interest expense is incurred from rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities which consist of deposits
and borrowings. Net interest income is determined by the Company’s interest rate spread (i.e., the difference between the yields
earned on its interest-earning assets and the rates paid on its interest-bearing liabilities) and the relative amounts of interest-earning
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assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The interest rate spread is influenced by the overall interest rate environment, the composition
and characteristics of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and by the competition in our marketplace. The interest
rate spread and the changes in the interest rate spread, from period-to-period, is also influenced by differences in the maturity and re-
pricing characteristics of assets compared to the maturity and re-pricing characteristics of the liabilities that fund them.

The Company’s profitability is also affected by the level of its non-interest income and expenses, provision for loan losses and
provision for income taxes. Non-interest income consists mostly of service charges on the Bank’s loan and deposit products, trust and
asset management service fees and increases in the cash surrender value of the bank owned life insurance. Non-interest expense
consists of compensation and related employee benefit expenses, occupancy, equipment, data processing, advertising, marketing,
professional fees, insurance and other operating overhead.

The Company’s profitability is significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions, changes in market interest
rates, government policies and actions of regulatory authorities. The Company’s loan portfolio is comprised principally of
commercial and commercial real estate loans. The properties underlying the Company’s mortgages are concentrated in northeastern
Pennsylvania. Credit risk, which represents the possibility of the Company not recovering amounts due from its borrowers, is
significantly related to local economic conditions in the areas the properties are located as well as the Company’s underwriting
standards. Economic conditions affect the market value of the underlying collateral as well as the levels of occupancy of multi-family
dwellings and levels of other income-producing properties and establishments.

Overview

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004 nearly doubled to $3,364,000 from $1,643,000 for the year ended December 31,
2003. Similarly, diluted earnings per share increased to $1.84 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 from $0.90 during the
year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in net earnings was primarily the result of decreases in both interest expense and the
provision for loan losses.

Return on average assets and return on average equity improved to 0.61% and 7.51%, respectively, for the year ended December 31,
2004 from 0.29% and 3.63%, respectively, in 2003. The improvement in these ratios is due principally to increased net income.




Net interest income

The following table sets forth a comparison of average balances of assets and liabilities and their related net tax equivalent yields and
rates for 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Interest-earning assets

Interest-bearing deposits

Investments:
U.S. government agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

State and municipal
Other
Total investments

Loans:

Commercial
Consumer

Real estate

Direct financing leases
Credit cards

Total loans

Federal funds sold
Total earning assets

Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits:

Savings

NOW

MMDA

Time deposits < $100,000
Time deposits > $100,000
Clubs

Total deposits

Repurchase agreements

Borrowed funds

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest income
Net interest spread
Net interest margin

Total average assets

Average non-interest bearing

deposits

In the above table:

2004 2003 2002
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest rate balance Interest rate balance Interest rate
$ 637 % 6 093% % 761 § 6  0.79% $ 919 § 17 1.81%
36,360 1,333 3.67 26,550 1,035 3.90 76,396 4,374 5.73
73,939 3,029 410 99,050 3,451 3.48 61,082 3,106  5.08
11,618 739 6.36 10,953 716  6.53 10,185 662 6.50
10,213 291 2.85 8,206 241 294 6.337 240  3.78
132,130 5392 408 144,759 5443 396 154,000 8382 544
223,660 12,172 5.44 212,351 11,813 5.56 202,500 12,547 6.20
47,030 3,321 7.06 51,836 3,879 7.48 58,157 4,925 8.47
113,589 6,737 593 117,939 7,386 6.26 113,679 8,095 7.12
3,013 201 6.66 4,546 319 7.02 7,558 552 7.30
- - - 427 43 10.13 2.897 283 977
387,292 22,431 3.79 387.099 23,440 6.06 384,791 26,402  6.86
1,530 17 113 3919 46 117 11.584 190 164
$521,589  $27.846  5.34%  $536,538  $28,935  5.399 $551,294  $34,991 6.35%
$ 41,860 $ 219 0.52% $ 40,439 $ 255 0.63% $36,031  § 363 1.01%
37,312 121 0.32 39,949 173 0.43 37,068 400 1.08
30,394 383 1.26 18,584 243 1.31 9,895 142 1.44
99,390 3,020  3.04 117,852 4,602 390 141,964 6,422  4.53
105,813 2,974 281 132,630 4,732 3.57 144,802 5,929 411
1,759 19 1.08 1,727 26 1.50 1.518 29 194
316,528 6,736  2.13 351,181 10,031 . 2.86 371,278 13,285 3.58
41,695 464 1.11 41,355 503 1.22 45,872 996  2.17
78.318 3980 5.08 69.471 3.703  5.33 64,045 3,601 5.62
$436,541  $11,180 2.56%  $462,007  $14,237 3.08%  $481.195 $17.882 3.729
$16.666 $14.698 $17.109
2.78% 2.31% 2.63%
3.20% 2.74% 3.10%
$550,223 $571,429 $580,769
$ 66,006 60,98 $ 53,504

Interest income was adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis to recognize the income from tax-exempt interest-earning assets as if the interest was taxable. This treatment
allows a uniform comparison between yields on interest-earning assets. The calculations were computed on a fully tax-equivalent basis using the corporate federal tax

rate of 34%.
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Loans include loans available-for-sale and non-accrual loans but exclude the allowance for loan losses. Within consumer loans, direct tinancing leases are presented net
of unearned interest. Average balances are based on amortized cost and do not reflect unrealized gains or losses.

Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the average yield on average interest-earning assets and the average cost of average interest-bearing liabilities.
Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by total average interest-earning assets.

Changes in net interest income are a function of both changes in rates and changes in volume of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in volume of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected the Bank’s interest income and interest expense during the periods indicated.
Information is provided in each category with respect to (1) the changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume
multiplied by prior rate), (2) the changes attributable to changes in interest rates (changes in rates multiplied by prior volume) and (3)
the net change. The combined effect of changes in both volume and rate has been allocated proportionately to the change due to
volume and the change due to rate. Tax-exempt income was not converted to a tax-equivalent basis on the rate/volume analysis:

Years ended December 31,
(doltars in thousands)

2004 Compared to 2003 2003 Compared to 2002
Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest income:
Loans and leases:
IMOTEEAZR vttt e e e § (268) $ (381) S (649) $ 319 $ (1,028) $ (709)
Commercial 605 (195) 410 656 (1.353) (697)
Consumer............... . 484 245 (729) (923) 602 (1,525)
Total [0ans and [€aSES....ccovevvivvivviieirieriieerceeiee v (147) (821) (968) 52 (2,983) (2,931)
Investment securities, interest-

bearing deposits and federal

TUNAS SO ..o (1.042) 943 (99) (795) (2.379) (3.174)
Total Interest INCOME ...eoveururvevereeeriseeseeeeenecensrereeisiaesines $(1.189) $ 122 $ (1.067) 3 (743) $ (5.362) $(6.103)
Interest expense:
Deposits:
Certificates of deposit greater than $100,000........... $ (858) $ (900) $ (1,758) S (466) S(731) $(1,197)
OREE oo (184) (1,353) (1.537) (249) (1.808) (2.057)
Total depositS........ccoceivvevivricvrrienane. (1,042) (2.253) (3,295) (715) (2.539) (3.254)
Other interest-bearing liabilities 337 (99) 238 39 (430) (391)
Total interest expense § (705 $ (2.352) $ (3,057) $ (676) $(2.969) $(3.645)
Net INTEIESt INCOME .o.uvivvreieiiertereeeeeeeeseeeecrte st ieteeereeenraes $ (484) $ 2474 S 1.990 $ (67) $(2,393) $(2.460)

The Federal Reserve Bank increased the discount rate five times in 2004. The discount rate is the rate at which the Federal Reserve
Bank lends overnight funds to banks. In response to these actions, national prime increased during the second half of 2004. National
prime is the benchmark rate banks use to set rates on various lending and other interest sensitive products. National prime increased
five times at 25 basis point increments each, for a total increase of 1.25% from 4.00% at December 31, 2003 to 5.25% at December
31,2004.

There was a 22 basis point differential between the weighted-average rate of national prime in 2004 compared to 2003. The weighted-
average rate of national prime in 2004 and 2003 was 4.34% and 4.12%, respectively. This difference has begun to increase the yield
on the Bank’s interest-earning assets and should continue to do so as new product is originated and variable rate loans re-price to these
higher rates.

The increase in the U.S. Treasury yields during the second half of 2003 resulted in a decrease in refinance activity and related cash
flows during the latter part of 2003 which continued during 2004. As market rates rise along with the increase in national prime, loan
originations, renewing commercial and residential loans and lines of credit should price above the average 2003 portfolio yields. In
addition, Treasury yields and slowing mortgage refinance activity will also positively impact the investment portfolio, increasing
yields which had begun during the third quarter of 2004 and should continue to do so in a rising rate environment, The predominant
low interest rate environment during 2004, resulting from current economic conditions, had a negative affect on earning assets,
causing total interest income to decrease 3.8%, from $28,462,000 in 2003 to $27,395,000 in 2004 and further caused the tax-
equivalent yield on earning assets to decrease 5 basis points. However, as previously mentioned, the Bank has begun to see an
increase in the tax-equivalent yield on its earning assets during the second half of 2004.




Interest expense decreased 21.5%, from $14,237,000 in 2003 to $11,180,000 in 2004. The cost of interest paying liabilities decreased
52 basis points in 2004. Rates paid on maturing time and retained transactional deposit products were reduced to market deposit rates
throughout 2004. However, certain contractual based, long-term time deposit products and borrowings, which must reach maturity
before they can re-price, continue to pay at above market rates. The low-cost overnight funding needs and the addition of the low-
costing $5,000,000 FHLB borrowings during the third quarter and the payoff of the higher costing $5,000,000 FHLB borrowing in the
fourth quarter helped reduce the average cost of these funding sources 25 basis points.

As a result, net interest income increased $1,990,000, or 14%, from $14,225,000 in 2003 to $16,215,000 in 2004. On a tax-equivalent.
basis, the net interest rate spread improved 47 basis points from 2.31% to 2.78% and the tax-equivalent margin improved 36 basis
points, from 2.74% in 2003 to 3.20% in 2004.

Provision for loan losses

The provision for loan losses represents the necessary amount to charge against current earnings, the purpose of which is to increase
the allowance for loan losses to a level that represents management's best estimate of known and inherent losses in the Bank's loan
portfolio. Loans and leases determined to be uncollectible are charged-off against the allowance for loan losses.

The required amount of the provision for loan losses, based upon the adequate level of the allowance for loan losses, is subject to
ongoing analysis of the loan portfolio. The Bank maintains a Special Asset Committee which meets periodically to review problem
loans and leases. The committee is comprised of Bank management, including the credit administration officer, loan workout officers
and collection personnel. The committee reports quarterly to the Credit Administration Committee of the Board of Directors.

Management continuously reviews the risks inherent in the loan and lease portfolio. Specific factors used to evaluate the adequacy of
the loan loss provision during the formal process include:

Specific loans that could have loss potential

Levels of and trends in delinquencies and non-accrual loans
Levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries

Trends in volume and terms of loans

Changes in risk selection and underwriting standards
Changes in lending policies, procedures and practices
Experience, ability and depth of lending management
National and local economic trends and conditions
Changes in credit concentrations

The provision for loan losses was $2,150,000, for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to $3,715,000 in 2003. As a resuit,
the allowance for loan losses was $5,988,000 at December 31, 2004, compared to $4,997,000 at December 31, 2003. Non-performing
loans, which consist of loans past due 90 days or more and non-accrual loans increased $2,180,000, or 26%, to $10,461,000 at
December 31, 2004, from $8,281,000, at December 31, 2003. Of this increase, non-accrual loans increased $2,581,000 in 2004. The
amount provided for loan losses, for the year ended December 31, 2004, was driven by increasing the allowance for loan losses to
match the risk profile inherent to the loan portfolio.

Other income

Other (non-interest) income consists of service charges or fees collected on the Bank’s various deposit and ioan products, net
mortgage servicing revenue, fees from trust, asset management and other financial services, the increase in the cash surrender value of
bank owned life insurance, the realized gains and losses from the sales of investment securities, loans, leased assets and foreclosed
assets held-for-sale and other various classifications of non-interest related income.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, other income was $4,161,000 or $22,000 less than the $4,183,000 recorded in 2003. Of this
decrease approximately $404,000 was related to a decline in net gains recognized from the sales of loans available-for-sale into the
secondary market. The decline in loan sales was the result of the slowing of the mortgage refinance activity that was propelled, during
2003, by relatively low interest rates and the anticipated rise in interest rates on mortgage and other loan products. In addition,
recognized net gains from sales of securities AFS declined from $329,000 in 2003 to $9,000 in 2004. Partially offsetting these
decreases was growth in service charges on deposit related accounts by approximately $309,000 in 2004 compared to 2003.

The Bank continues to focus and monitor various fee generating activities related to deposit accounts and considers this revenue
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source a viable complement to net interest income. The Bank’s trust and asset management services continue to increase its efforts to
provide full-service alternative financial products to the Bank’s customer base. During 2004, these two areas combined for an
increase in fees of $59,000 compared to 2003.

Items further impacting other income included the reduction in recorded losses on sales of full-term leased assets in the amounts of
$291,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. This compares to losses in 2003 of $409,000. In addition, amortization of
mortgage servicing rights (an offset service fee income) declined $206,000 for the year ended 2004 compared to 2003. The decrease
was due to the lower volume of mortgage prepayments and mortgage re-financing in 2004.

Other expense

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, other operating expenses were $13,827,000 or $924,000 more than the $12,903,000
recorded in the same period of 2003. Salary and employee benefit costs increased $366,000 for the twelve months ended December
31, 2004 compared to the same period in 2003. The increase was primarily due to the staffing of new key management positions as
well as annual merit increases on compensation costs and the related incremental payroll taxes thereon. In addition, the Bank
continues to experience escalating costs of various employee benefit programs. In 2004, the cost to provide health insurance
premiums to the Bank’s employees increased 21% from 2003. Advertising expenses increased $95,000, or 28% during the year ended
2004 compared to the year ended 2003. The increase in advertising was due to implementation of direct marketing programs with
focus on brand awareness and the acquisition of core deposits. A more scientific approach to buying media was instituted, using
various marketing models to reach a more targeted audience. This led to the purchase of alternative media resources, such as
television spots and “screen vision” at a local unaffiliated movie theater complex that it did not use during 2003. In addition, the Bank
used more radio advertising in 2004 compared to 2003. The increase in the other operating expenses was primarily the result of
recording an incremental obligation related to the retirement benefit for the Company’s former chairman and president in the amount
of $476,000. The retirement benefit represents a present value obligation for certain benefits, to be paid periodically in the future, that
include payments, reduced by appropriate taxes, and estimated medical insurance reimbursements. Based upon the subjective nature
of the medical insurance premium portion of the accrual, as it relates to future premium costs, and the uncertainty of the future benefit
period to be covered, the Company may find it necessary to increase or decrease the accrual.

Components of other operating expense also include professional fees, office supplies, printing, communications and data processing
which did not vary significantly for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 compared to the same period in 2003.

The ratio of non-interest expense less non-interest income to average assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 1.69% and 1.68%,
respectively. This ratio continues to perform favorably against the Uniform Bank Performance Report peer comparison groups, which
supports Management’s commitment to maintain and reasonably control overhead expenses.

Provision for income taxes

Income before provision for income taxes in 2004 increased $2,610,000 from 2003. The effective federal income tax rate was 23.5%
and 8.2% for the years ending December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The effective tax rate increase is contributed to a decreased
portion of combined tax-free interest income from municipal securities, tax-free loans and tax-free earnings from the Bank Owned
Life Insurance representing a smaller percentage of pre-tax earnings.

Comparison of Financial’ Condition as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Deposits

Total deposits decreased $12,346,000 or 3% during 2003 to $401,443,000. Total average deposits decreased $12,616,000 or 3% from
$424,782,000 at December 31, 2002 to $412,166,000 at December 31, 2003. The interest rates offered on most deposit products were
lowered in 2002 and continued through 2003 in response to overall market conditions.

Core deposits, which excludes time deposits of $100,000 and greater, increased $4,283,000 or 2% during 2003, to $288,585,000.

Checking accounts increased $11,099,000 or 12%, and savings and club accounts grew $4,355,000 or 11%. Money market accounts
grew $11,723,000 or 71%.
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Time deposits of $100,000 or greater decreased $16,629,000 or 13% from $129,486,000 at December 31, 2002 to $112,857,000 at
December 31, 2003. The time deposit reduction occurred from the run-off of high cost non-personal and public fund accounts. The
personal time deposit reduction was fully offset by the shift into savings and money market accounts. Total time deposits, at
December 31, 2003 were $221,595,000 or 55% of total deposits compared to $256,836,000 or 62% at December 31, 2002.

Short-term borrowings

Interest rate reductions and customer liquidity and investment needs caused repurchase agreements (Repos) to decrease from
$47,232,000 at December 31, 2002, to $39,363,000 at December 31, 2003. Sweep accounts comprised approximately 70% of Repos.

Funding requirements of the Bank, due largely to the reduction in deposits, necessitated $14,920,000 overnight borrowings from the
FHLB, at December 31, 2003. FHLB borrowings at December 31, 2002 amounted to $2,850,000.

Long-term debt

Long-term debt consisted of borrowings from the FHLB. The weighted-average rate on funds borrowed at December 31, 2003, was
5.31%. The weighted-average rate was 6 basis points below the tax-equivalent yield of 5.39% on average earmning assets for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Rates on $63,000,000 of convertible select advances are adjustable quarterly, should market rates
significantly increase beyond the issue’s three- month strike price. However, year-end rates on similar FHLB advances were 401
basis points below the average rate paid by the Bank. The Bank is deterred from paying off the current borrowings by significant
prepayment penalties.

In October 2003, the Bank borrowed $9,000,000 from the FHLB to replenish funds utilized from the investment securities portfolio, to
fund deposit run-off. The new borrowings were a $5,000,000 ten year convertible select with a 7.5% strike price costing 3.61% and a
five year amortizing $4,000,000 advance fixed at 2.98%. The addition of this debt helped to reduce the overall weighted-average rate
of long-term debt outstanding.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Rate reductions in interest-bearing deposits and short-term borrowings caused accrued interest payable to decrease from $1,707,000 at
December 31, 2002, to $ 1,270,080 at December 31, 2003,

A $746,000 pending settlement of investment securities purchased was recorded in other liabilities at December 31, 2002, The Bank
did not have any pending investment purchases at December 31, 2003.

Assets:

Investments

Total investments declined $5,143,000, of which $2,240,000 was due to depreciation in the market value of available-for-sale (AFS)
investments.

The carrying value of investment securities, at December 31, 2003, was $144,730,000 or 25% of total assets. At December 31, 2003
approximately 59% of the investment portfolio was comprised of mortgage-backed securities that amortize and provide monthly cash
flow. Agency bonds and municipal bonds comprised 26% and 9% of the investment portfolio, respectively.

With the relative low market interest rate environment, which continued through 2003, higher yielding United States Government
Agency bonds along with state and municipal securities of $24,810,000 were called. In 2002, when the composition of the investment
portfolio was more susceptible to being called, securities approximating $90,600,000 were called. No losses were incurred, in 2002 or
2003, on any of the called bonds.

The low interest rate environment also caused many borrowers to prepay and/or refinance home mortgages. In terms of investments,
this contributed to a major prepayment in the Bank’s portfolio of mortgage-backed securities (MBS), which represents investments in
pools of residential mortgages.




Of the total MBS prepayments received in 2002, $11,682,000 or 64% was received during the fourth quarter, $4,436,000 in December
alone. At the prepayment speed experienced during this period, the entire MBS portfolio could have been paid off in just over two
years. In addition, amortization of bond premium in the amount of $2,449,000 would have been accelerated into this shorter time
period, opposed to over the estimated average life of seven years at the times of purchase. Amortization of bond premium is the
periodic charge to earnings for the amount by which the purchase price of a bond exceeds its par value.

A restructuring of the investment portfolio was undertaken in 2003, to protect earnings which were being adversely impacted by bond
calls and MBS prepayments. The objective of the restructuring was to effectively manage and predict cash flows from securities
within a four year average life range where redeployment of the proceeds could go into higher yielding investments. This control
would help reduce interest rate risk and coordinate the Bank’s desired earnings and liquidity needs. To accomplish the restructuring
of the MBS portfolio, the Bank participated in a series of strategically planned sales with subsequent buys of similar type securities
(swaps). The swaps were designed to maintain cash flow through the sale of the faster prepaying available-for-sale MBS and
reinvesting the proceeds into MBS issues with weighted-average coupons that provided the desired structured cash flows. This
strategy would help to reduce prepayment risk and take advantage of the steep yield curve. The swaps produced modest gains on the
sales and securities were purchased at effective yields above the bonds sold. At December 31, 2003, the estimated weighted-average
life of the MBS portfolio extended to approximately four years and the net premiums were reduced to $1,153,000. At December 31,
2003, the MBS portfolio was producing yields that were approximately 56 basis points more than the portfolio was producing at
December 31, 2002.

The other aspect of the restructuring strategy was to reinvest the proceeds from called bonds and MBS payments defensively into U.S.
Agency and municipal obligations that provided greater protection from future calls. Approximately $27,990,000 of the acquired
Agency bonds contained rate steps, whereby the rate automatically increased, if the bond continued past the call date. These defensive
structures mitigate extension risks inherent within this low interest rate environment.

Debt securities are stated net of unrealized gain or loss on AFS securities. Net unrealized loss on AFS debt securities at December 31,
2003 was $493,000. Debt securities do not include the $279,000 of AFS equity securities or the $4,753,000 of restricted regulatory
equity securities owned at December 31, 2003. Net unrealized gain on AFS equity securities was $170,000 at December 31, 2003.

The tax equivalent yield on debt securities by stated maturity date at December 31, 2003, is as follows:

One year One through  Five through More than
or less five years ten years ten vears Total
U.S. Government Agencies -% 2.60% 3.51% 4.72% 3.86%
Mortgaged Backed Securities - 5.52 3.60 4.78 4.45
State & Municipal Subdivisions - 6.09 5.09 5.82 5.70
Preferred Term Securities - - - _3.81 381
Total debt securities 0.00% 337% 3.64% 4.84% 4.40%

Loans

Loans, net of unearned income, increased $13,817,000 or 3.86% from $358,162,000 at December 31, 2002, to $371,979,000 at
December 31, 2003. Gross loans represented 64.67% of total assets at December 31, 2003.

In 2003, the Bank originated $37,797,000 of commercial loans, $40,028,000 of mortgage loans and $24,041,000 of consumer loans.
In addition for 2003, the Bank committed to maximum lines of credit of $33,158,000 for commercial borrowers, $14,523,000 for real
estate construction loans, $15,528,000 in home equity lines and $213,000 for consumer borrowers. Growth in the portfolio was
primarily in commercial and commercial real estate.

Loan refinancing to lower interest rates continued in 2003 at a much greater volume than in 2002. Such refinancing occurred in all
loan portfolios and followed a corresponding drop in interest rates which correlated with a national trend. It is anticipated that the

volume of prepayments and refinance requests could begin to ease, as rates become stable or increase. Furthermore, new loans are

being structured, when possible, to better withstand market fluctuations.
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Commercial Logns:
Net of scheduled principal curtailments, loan participation sales, and pre-payment, commercial loans increased $18,302,000 or 9.02%
during 2003. This increase in commercial loans was primarily due to increased lending within the small business community.

Tax-free industrial development loans made to or backed by local municipalities increased to $9,020,000 at December 31, 2003. The
surge in this sector was due mainly to several large term loans to local municipalities for various infrastructure projects.

Residential Real Estate Loans:
lesidential real estate loans increased $5,332,000 or 6.24% to $90,779,000. These loans increased due to strong demand for such
loans due to the historic low interest rate environment.

Real estate and construction loan totals of $98,047,000 were 25.02% of gross loans at December 31, 2003. Included with real estate
loans are home equity lines of credit. The outstanding balance on the credit lines increased $6,387,000 or 87.31% from $7,315,000 at
December 31, 2002, to $13,702,000 at December 31, 2003,

Consumer Loans and Direct Financing Leases:

Consumer loans and direct-financing leases decreased $10,661,000 or 16.77% during 2003. The home equity installment loan
portfolio, included within the consumer loans, experienced significant payoffs caused by refinancing into lower rate mortgages. In
addition, prepayments could not be successfully replaced due to the tightened credit underwriting standards on indirect auto loans and
the decision to no longer originate direct financing leases. A combination of these events brought about this overall decline in
consumer loans.

The following table sets forth the maturity distribution of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2003. Excluded from the table are non-
construction real estate loans, consumer Joans and direct financing leases (amounts in thousands):

One year One to More than
or less five years five years Total
Commercial and commercial
real estate loans $42,652 $42,297 $136,327 $221,276
Real estate construction 7,268 - - 7,268
Total $49,920 $42,297 $136327 $228 544

The following table sets forth the sensitivity changes in interest rates for commercial and commercial real estate loans at December
31, 2003 (amounts in thousands):

One to five More than
years five years Total
Fixed interest rate $ 8,286 $ 14,511 $ 22,797
Variable interest rate 34,011 121,816 155,827
Total $42,297 $136,327 $178.624

Loans available-for-sale

Loans available-for-sale at December 31, 2003 was $19,864,000, with a corresponding fair value of $20,500,000. The year-end
balance was comprised of $17,783,000 of residential mortgages, $1,338,000 of SBA loans, and $743,000 in student loans. The Bank
decreased loans available-for-sale by $8,852,000 or 30.83% from the December 31, 2002 balance. Available-for-sale loans decreased
in part from the overall sale of these types of loans and, in part, from a management decision to temporarily classify fewer residential
loans as available-for-sale, in order to take advantage of higher rates offered in this loan category compared to market rates. Also, at
December 31, 2002, the AFS portfolio included $2,872,000 of credit card receivables which the Bank sold during the first quarter of
2003. The decision to sell these receivables was based upon lack of an adequate credit card servicing system, lack of consistent
growth, high overhead associated with credit card activities and a high loss experience on non-performing credit cards.

Servicing rights on sold loans were retained by the Bank and at December 31, 2003, the servicing portfolio balance of sold residential
mortgage loans was $56,021,000.




Bank premises and equipment, net

Due to the fact that expansion plans were deferred and a major computer system conversion was completed in 2002, additions to
premises and equipment were minimal and amounted to $621,000 for 2003 compared to $2,542,000 in 2002.

Foreclosed assets held for sale

Real estate acquired through foreclosure increased $132,000 in 2003 compared to 2002 due to the receipt of five properties foreclosed
during the fourth quarter and held for sale at year end. Repossessed vehicles had a net decrease of $102,000, mostly from the
increased turn around time on the sale of these vehicles.

Comparison of the Results of Operations for the Years December 31, 2003 and 2002

Results of Operations

Net interest income

The Federal Reserve Bank lowered the discount rate once in 2003. The discount rate is the rate at which the Federal Reserve Bank
lends overnight funds to banks. In response to these actions, national prime dropped 25 basis points from 4.25% to 4.00%.

There is a 55 basis point differential between the weighted-average of national prime in 2003 compared to 2002. The weighted-
average of national prime in 2003 and 2002 was 4.12% and 4.67%, respectively. This ditference reflects the reduction of total interest
income and corresponding yield on earning assets, when comparing both years.

As market rates remained at low levels throughout 2003, along with the reduction of national prime, loan originations and renewing
commercial loans and lines of credit priced substantially below the portfolio yields of 2002. Treasury yields and the waves of
mortgage refinancing also adversely impacted the investment portfolio, driving yields downward throughout 2003. The MBS,
mortgage and consumer home equity instaliment loan portfolios each experienced significant payoffs caused from the number of
mortgage refinance waves experienced throughout 2003. Besides the natural reduction of interest income from repricing, the
significant prepayments of MBS led to the recognition of a $1,167,000 net increase in amortization of premium held on these bonds
over 2002. The low interest rate environment resulting from current economic conditions had a negative affect on earning assets,
causing total interest income to decrease 17.66%, from $34,567,000 in 2002 to $28,462,000 in 2003 and further caused the tax-
equivalent yield on earning assets to decrease 96 basis points.

Interest expense decreased 20.38%, from $17,882,000 in 2002 to $14,237,000 in 2003. The cost of interest paying liabilities decreased
64 basis points in 2003. Rates paid on deposit products were reduced to market deposit rates throughout 2003. However, certain
contractual based deposit products and borrowings, which must reach maturity to re-price, continued to pay at above market rates.

The inability to reduce interest expense on these products prevented the Bank from fully mitigating the reduced interest income for the
year to maintain our margin. The low cost overnight funding needs and the addition of the $9,000,000 FHLB borrowings during the
fourth quarter helped to reduce the average cost of these long-term funds 29 basis points, which somewhat eased the negative impact
on net interest income.

As an overall result, net interest income decreased $2,460,000, or 14.75%, from $16,685,000 in 2002 to $14,225,000 in 2003. The net
interest margin, on a tax-equivalent basis, declined 36 basis points, from 3.10% in 2002 to 2.74% in 2003.

Provision for loan losses

The provision for loan losses was $3,715,000, for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to $1,664,000 in 2002. Non-
performing loans, which consisted of loans past due 90 days or more and non-accrual loans, were $8,281,000 at December 31, 2003,
compared to $6,599,000, at December 31, 2002. Of this amount, non-accrual loans increased $3,323,000 in 2003. The increase in
non-accrual loans was primarily due to the addition of three large commercial relationships. The amount provided for toan losses, for
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the year ended December 31, 2003, was driven by increasing the allowance for loan losses to match the risk profile inherent to the
loan portfolio and, to a lesser extent, an increase in loan volume.

Other income

For the year ended December 31, 2003, other income was $4,183,000 or $880,000 more than the $3,303,000 recorded in 2002, Of this
increase, $360,000 pertained to service charge activities related to deposit accounts, which grew considerably during 2003 from the
focused management of these services and addition of our Courtesy Coverage service. The Bank recorded income of $294,000 on the
increase in the cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance policy, which was a new addition of tax-free earnings for 2003. In
addition, the Bank recognized gains, during 2003, on the sales of AFS investments and loans held-for-sale in the amounts of $329,000
and $548,000, respectively. This compares favorably to $59,000 and $378,000, respectively, recognized in 2002. Trust and financial
services income was approximately $86,000 higher in 2003 due to stepped-up efforts to service all of the financial needs of our
customers.

Items further impacting other income included the recorded losses on sales of full-term leased assets and foreclosed assets held-for-
sale in the amounts of $409,000 and $12,000, respectively for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003. This compares to losses
in 2002 of $48,000 and $3,000, respectively. Also negatively impacting other income was the high amount of amortization of
mortgage servicing rights, which for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, was $174,000 more than 2002 amortization. This
increase was due to the near record low-interest rate environment, which, in turn, resulted in a high volume of mortgage prepayments
and re-financing in 2003 and a decrease in the Bank’s loan servicing portfolio.

Other expense

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, other operating expenses were $12,903,000 or $152,000 more than the $12,751,000
recorded in the same period of 2002. Premises and equipment related expenses increased approximately $372,000 in 2003 compared
to 2002. Of this increase, deprecation expense increased $195,000. The increase in depreciation expense can be primarily attributed
to the Eynon branch, which opened during the third quarter of 2002 and the Bank’s new core processing system which was installed
during the fourth quarter of 2002. Advertising expenses were approximately $61,000 or 15% lower for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2003 compared to the same 2002 period. The decrease is due to a strategic approach to reduce expenses by targeting
lower cost advertising methods for the Bank’s branch system.

Salaries and Employee Benefits were $30,000 lower for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 compared to the same period in
2002. Inflationary increases on salaries and therefore, the increased payroll related taxes were more than offset by reductions in
employee benefit costs resulting from health care and profit-sharing cuts. Due to the continued escalating cost of health insurance,
during 2003, the Bank increased the employees’ co-pay portion of that cost. In addition, the Bank’s financial performance in 2003
caused the contribution to the profit-sharing plan to decrease 32%, from $130,000 in 2002 to $89,000 in 2003. The Bank’s
contribution to the profit-sharing plan continued, in order to reward employees for work accomplished.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, the Bank recorded legal and audit fees in the amount of $617,000 or 174% more
than the $225,000 recorded for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002. The Company incurred significant legal expenses to
aggressively defend a law suit filed against the Bank, which was settled in October 2003. In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Bank
utilized a national independent accounting firm to consult with Management on the review, documentation and reporting on the
Company’s system of internal controls, to achieve full compliance with current FDICIA and SEC regulations. In addition, the Audit
Committee decided to outsource the internal auditing function to a local certified public accounting firm. The outsourcing was
required to complete the thirty-six internal audit reports necessary to meet the FDICIA regulations. The outsourcing arrangement wil}
continue to maximize the effectiveness of the internal auditing process, both on a quarterly interim and annual basis.

The ratio of non-interest expense less non-interest income to average assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 1.68% for both years.
Provision for income taxes

Income before provision for income taxes in 2003 decreased $3,783,000 from 2002. The effective federal income tax rate was 8.19%
and 27.39% for the years ending December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate was due to the
increased portion of combined tax-free interest income from municipal securities, tax-free loans and tax-free earnings from the Bank

Owned Life Insurance that was included in pre-tax earnings. Non-taxable income as a percentage of income before taxes increased
from 18.90% in 2002, to 67.72% in 2003.
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Capital Resources

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.
The Company’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings and other factors.

Capital is fundamental to support our continued growth. In addition, the Company and Bank are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements. Regulatory capital is defined in terms of Tier [ capital (shareholders' equity plus the allowable portion of the minority
interest in equity of subsidiaries, minus unrealized gains or plus unrealized losses on available for sale securities, and minus certain
intangible assets), Tier Il capital (which includes a portion of the allowance for loan losses, minority interest in equity of subsidiaries
and subordinated debt), and total capital (Tier I plus Tier II). Risk-based capital ratios are expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted
assets. Risk-weighted assets are determined by assigning various weights to all assets and off-balance sheet financial instruments, such
as letters of credit and loan commitments, based on associated risk. Regulators have also adopted minimum Tier [ leverage ratio
standards, which measure the ratio of Tier | capital to total average quarterly assets.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to maintain minimum amounts and
ratios of total and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier I capital to average assets. Capital is evaluated in relation to total
assets and the risk associated with those assets. With greater capital resources, a bank is more likely to be able to meet its cash
obligations and absorb unforeseen losses. The Company exceeds all minimum regulatory capital requirements (see Note 14
“Regulatory Matters”, contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements, and incorporated herein by reference).

The Company's major source of capital has been from the retention of equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank, as reflected below:

Net Dividends Earnings

income declared retained
2004 $3,364,474 $1,610,423 $1,754,051
2003 1,643,248 1,601,898 41,350
2002 4,046,173 1,526,371 2,519,802
2001 3,848,136 1,426,097 2,422,039
2000 3,182,628 1,366,075 1,816,553

Capital was further increased in 2004 through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP). Shareholders reinvested
$501,000 in dividends to purchase additional shares of stock. In addition, through the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and via the
exercise of stock options through the Stock Incentive Plan, capital increased by $53,000 and $16,000, respectively.

Capital was further enhanced by changes in market rates. The Bank’s investment strategy reacting to market changes resulted in
a $112,000 improvement, net of deferred taxes, in the fair value of AFS investments. At December 31, 2003, the Bank reported a
net unrealized loss on AFS securities of $213,000. At December 31, 2004, a net unrealized loss of $101,000 was reported.
Fluctuations in the capital markets cause frequent changes in the fair value of AFS securities. A future decline in value should
not indicate a material weakness in the capital position of the Company. The Company monitors market conditions closely and is
prepared to take remedial action when appropriate.

During the second quarter of 2003, 12,720 shares of common stock became available on the open market. The Company
purchased the stock for $458,000 with the intention to reissue the stock under the DRIP and Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
During the first two quarters of 2004, the remaining 5,227 shares of treasury stock were reissued under the DRIP and Employee
Stock Purchase Plan.

Liquidity
Liquidity management ensures that adequate funds will be available to meet customers' needs for borrowings, deposit withdrawals and

maturities and normal operating expenses of the Bank. Current sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, asset maturities and
pay downs within one year, loans and investments available-for-sale, growth of core deposits, growth of repurchase agreements,
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increase of other borrowed funds from correspondent banks and issuance of capital stock. Although regularly scheduled investment
and loan payments are a dependable source of daily funds, the sale of loans and AFS investments, deposit activity, and investment and
loan prepayments are significantly influenced by general economic conditions and the level of interest rates.

At December 31, 2004, the Company maintained $10,216,000 in cash and cash equivalents. In addition, the Company had $576,000
of loans available-for-sale and $117,181,000 in investments available-for-sale. This combined total of $127,973,000 represented 24%
of total assets at December 31, 2004. Management believes that the present level of liquidity is strong and adequate for current
operations.

The Company considers its primary source of liquidity to be its core deposit base consisting of deposits from customers throughout the
branch network. The Company will continue to promote the acquisition of deposits through its branch offices. At December 31,
2004, approximately 68% of the Company’s assets were funded by deposits and an additional 9% of the assets were funded by the
Company’s equity. The company expects to grow these two components, which provides a substantial and steady source of funds.

As detailed in the statement of cash flows incorporated by reference, total cash and cash equivalents had a net $9,015,000 decrease
stemming from net cash used by financing activities due to decline in deposits and net reductions in borrowings, financed by net
increases in funds provided from investing activities and funds provided from operations. Sources of funds from investment activities
include proceeds from the sale of loans and securities AFS and net proceeds from pay-downs and maturities of securities.

At December 31, 2004, the Bank had approximately $125 million in unused sources of borrowed funds available to meet liquidity
requirements. The sources were the approximated borrowing capacity at the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia of $25 million
along with available funding at the FHLB of $100 million. The borrowing capacity at the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia is the
discounted market value of investment securities pledged as collateral at the date of borrowing.

Management of interest rate risk and market risk analysis

The Company is subject to the interest rate risks inherent in our lending, investing and financing activities. Fluctuations of interest
rates will impact interest income and interest expense along with affecting market values of all interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, except for those assets or liabilities with a short-term remaining to maturity. Interest rate risk management is an
integral part of the asset/liability management process. The Company has instituted certain procedures and policy guidelines to
manage the interest rate risk position. Those internal policies enable the Company to react to changes in market rates to protect net
interest income from significant fluctuations. The primary objective in managing interest rate risk is to minimize the adverse impact
of changes in interest rates on net interest income along with creating an asset/liability structure that maximizes earnings.

Asset/Liability Management. One major objective of the Company when managing the rate sensitivity of its assets and liabilities is to
stabilize net interest income. The management of and authority to assume interest rate risk is the responsibility of the Company’s
Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO), which is comprised of senior management and Board members. ALCO meets quarterly to
monitor the ratio of interest sensitive assets to interest sensitive habilities. The process to review interest rate risk is a regular part of
managing the Company. Consistent policies and practices of measuring and reporting interest rate risk exposure, particularly
regarding the treatment of non-contractual assets and liabilities, are in effect. In addition, there is an annual process to review the
interest rate risk policy with the Board of Directors which includes limits on the impact to earnings from shifts in interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk Measurement. Interest rate risk is monitored through the use of three complementary measures: static gap analysis,
earnings at risk simulation and economic value at risk simulation. While each of the interest rate risk measurements has limitations,
taken together they represent a reasonably comprehensive view of the magnitude of interest rate risk in the Company and the
distribution of risk along the yield curve, the level of risk through time and the amount of exposure to changes in certain interest rate
relationships.

Static Gap. The ratio between assets and liabilities re-pricing in specific time intervals is referred to as an interest rate sensitivity gap.
Interest rate sensitivity gaps can be managed to take advantage of the slope of the yield curve as well as forecasted changes in the level
of interest rate changes.

To manage this interest rate sensitivity gap position, an asset/liability model called cumulative gap analysis is used to monitor the
difference in the volume of the Company’s interest sensitive assets and liabilities that mature or re-price within given periods. A
positive gap (asset sensitive) indicates that more assets reprice during a given period compared to liabilities, while a negative gap
(liability sensitive) has the opposite effect. The Company employs computerized net interest income simulation modeling to assist in
quantifying interest rate risk exposure. This process measures and quantifies the impact on net interest income through varying
interest rate changes and balance sheet compositions. The use of this model assists the ALCO to gauge the effects of the interest rate
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changes on interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to determine what impact these rate changes will have upon the net interest
spread. At December 31, 2004, the Bank maintained a one-year cumulative positive gap of $63.4 million or 11.8% of total assets.
The effect of this positive gap position provided a mismatch of assets and liabilities which may expose the Bank to interest rate risk
during periods of declining interest rates. Conversely, in an increasing interest rate environment, net interest income could be
positively impacted because more assets than liabilities will re-price during a given period.

Interest sensitivity gap at December 31, 2004

Three months Three to One to Over
or less twelve months  three years three years Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,315 $ - $ - $ 8901 $ 10,216
Investment securities ) 13,537 13,836 38,711 54,154 120,238
Loans @ 150,981 74,291 80,381 76,470 382,123
Fixed and other assets - 7,613 - 16,485 24,098
Total assets $ 165,833 $ 95740 $ 119,092 § 156,010 § 536,675
Total cumulative assets $ 165,833 $ 261,573 § 380,665 % 536,675
Non-interest bearing transaction deposits $ - $ 6536 $ 17974 § 40,848 % 65,358
Interest-bearing transaction deposits @ 5,521 55,027 44,031 10,995 115,574
Time deposits 22,721 59,066 89,433 13,463 184,683
Repurchase agreements 33,056 598 7,029 - 40,683
Short-term borrowings 9,850 - - - 9,850
Long-term debt 5,204 610 1,628 63,677 71,119
Other liabilities - - - 3,041 3,041
Total liabilities $ 76,352 $ 121,837 § 160,095 § 132,024 § 490,308
Total cumulative liabilities $ 76,352 $ 198,189 $ 358284 § 490,308
Interest sensitivity gap $ 89481 $ (26,097) S (41,003) § 23,986
Cumulative gap $ 89,481 $ 63384 § 22381 § 46,367
Cumulative gap to total assets 16.67% 11.81% 4.17% 8.64%
(€)] Includes net unrealized gains/iosses on available-for-sale securities.
(2) Investments and loans are included in the earlier of the period in which interest rates were next scheduled to adjust or the period in which they are due. In

addition, loans were included in the periods in which they are scheduled to be repaid based on scheduled amortization. For amortizing loans and mortgage-
backed securities, annual prepayment rates are assumed reflecting historical experience as well as management’s knowledge and experience of its loan
products.

(3) The Bank’s demand and savings accounts were generally subject to immediate withdrawal. However, management considers a certain amount of such
accounts to be core accounts having significantly longer effective maturities based on the retention experiences of such deposits in changing interest rate
environments. The effective maturities presented are the recommended maturity distribution limits for non-maturing deposits based on historical deposit
studies.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the above table. Although certain assets and liabilities may
have similar maturities or periods of repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. The interest
rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other
types of assets and liabilities may lag behind changes in market interest rates. Certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgages, have
features which restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. In the event of a change in interest
rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels may deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table. The ability of
many borrowers to service their adjustable-rate debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.

Earnings at Risk and Economic Value ar Risk Simulations. The Company recognizes that more sophisticated tools exist for measuring
the interest rate risk in the balance sheet beyond static re-pricing gap analysis. Although it will continue to measure its repricing gap
position, the Company utilizes additional modeling for identifying and measuring the interest rate risk in the overall balance sheet.
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The ALCO is responsible for focusing on "earnings at risk" and "economic value at risk", and how both relate to the risk-based capital
position when analyzing the interest rate risk.

Earnings at Risk. Earnings at risk simulation measures the change in net interest income and net income should interest rates rise and
fall. The simulation recognizes that not all assets and liabilities re-price one-for-one with market rates (e.g., savings rate). The ALCO
looks at "earnings at risk" to determine income changes from a base case scenario under an increase and decrease of 200 basis points
in interest rate simulation models.

Economic Value at Risk. Earnings at risk simulation measures the short-term risk in the balance sheet. Economic value (or portfolio
equity) at risk measures the long-term risk by finding the net present value of the future cash flows from the Company's existing assets
and liabilities. The ALCO examines this ratio quarterly utilizing an increase and decrease of 200 basis points in interest rates
simulation model. The ALCO recognizes that, in some instances, this ratio may contradict the "earnings at risk" ratio.

The following table illustrates the simulated impact of an immediate 200 basis points upward or downward movement in interest rates
on net interest income, net income and the change in the economic value (portfolio equity). This analysis assumed that interest-
earning asset and interest-bearing liability levels at December 31, 2004 remained constant. The impact of the rate movements was
developed by simulating the effect of the rate change over a twelve-month period from the December 31, 2004 levels:

Rates +200 Rates -200
Earnings at risk:
Percent change in:
Net interest income 9.3% (20.9) %
Net income 26.8 (58.8)
Economic value at risk:
Percent change in:
Economic value of equity (11.3) (17.5)
Economic value of equity
as a percent of total assets (1.10) (1.71)

Economic value has the most meaning when viewed within the context of risk-based capital. Therefore, the economic value may
normally change beyond the Company's policy guideline for a short period of time as long as the risk-based capital ratio (after
adjusting for the excess equity exposure) is greater than 10%. At December 31, 2004, the Company’s risk-based capital ratio was
13.3%.

The table below summarizes estimated changes in net interest income over a twelve-month period beginning January 1, 2005, under
alternate interest rate scenarios using the income simulation model described above:

Net interest Dollar %
Change in interest rates income variance Variance
(dollars in thousands)
+200 basis points $ 19,689 $ 1,676 9.3%
+100 basis points 18,956 943 5.2
Flat rate 18,013 - -

-100 basis points 16,287 (1,720) (9.6)
-200 basis points 14,248 (3,765) (20.9)

Simulation models require assumptions about certain categories of assets and liabilities. The models schedule existing assets and
liabilities by their contractual maturity, estimated likely call date or earliest re-pricing opportunity. Mortgage-backed securities and
amortizing loans are scheduled based on their anticipated cash flow including estimated prepayments. For investment securities, we
use a third-party service to provide cash flow estimates in the various rate environments. Savings accounts, including passbook,
statement savings, money market and interest checking accounts, do not have a stated maturity or re-pricing term and can be
withdrawn or re-price at any time. This may impact the margin if more expensive alternative sources of deposits are required to fund
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loans or deposit runoff. Management projects the re-pricing characteristics of these accounts based on historical performance and
assumptions that it believes reflect their rate sensitivity. The consulting model reinvests all maturities, repayments and prepayments
for each type of asset or liability into the same product for a new like term then applies growth or run-off estimates provided by
management. As a result, the mix of interest-earning assets and interest bearing-liabilities is not held constant.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The following is a brief summary of the regulatory environment in which the Company and the Bank operate and is not designed to be
a complete discussion of all statures and regulations affecting such operations, including those statutes and regulations specifically
mentioned herein. Changes in the laws and regulations applicable to the Company and the Bank can affect the operating environment
in substantial and unpredictable ways. We cannot accurately predict whether legislation will ultimately be enacted, and if enacted, the
ultimate effect that it or implementing regulations would have on our financial condition or results of operations. While banking
regulations are material to the operations of the Company and the Bank; it should be noted that supervision, regulation, and
examination of the Company and the Bank are intended primarily for the protection of depositors, not shareholders.

Recent Legislation:

USA Patriot Act of 2001. On October 26, 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA Patriot Act) was signed into law. The USA Patriot Act broadened the application
of anti-money laundering regulations to apply to additional types of financial institutions, such as broker-dealers, and strengthened the
ability of the U.S. government to detect and prosecute international money laundering and the financing of terrorism. The principal
provisions of Title 11l of the USA Patriot Act require that regulated financial institutions, including national banks: (1) establish an
anti-money laundering program that includes training and audit components; (2) comply with regulations regarding the verification of
the identity of any person seeking to open an account; (3) take additional required precautions with regard to non-U.S. owned
accounts; and (4) perform certain verification and certification of money laundering risk for their foreign correspondent banking
relationships. The USA Patriot Act also expanded the conditions under which funds in a U.S. inter-bank account may be subject to
forfeiture and increased the penalties for violation of anti-money laundering regulations. Failure of a financial institution to comply
with the USA Patriot Acts requirements could have serious legal and reputational consequences for the institution. The Bank has
adopted policies, procedures and controls to address compliance with the requirements of the USA Patriot Act under the existing
regulations and will continue to revise and update its policies, procedures and controls to reflect changes required by the USA Patriot
Act and implementing regulations .

IMLAFATA. As part of the USA Patriot Act, Congress adopted the International Money Laundering Abatement and Financial Anti-
Terrorism Act of 2001 (IMLAFATA). IMLAFATA amended the Bank Secrecy Act and adopted certain additional measures that
increase the obligation of financial institutions, including the Bank, to identify their customers, watch for and report upon suspicious
transactions, respond to requests for information by federal banking regulatory authorities and law enforcement agencies, and share
information with other financial institutions. The Secretary of the Treasury has adopted several regulations to implement these
provisions. The bank is also barred from dealing with foreign “shell” banks. In addition, IMLAFATA expands the circumstances
under which funds in a bank account may be forfeited. IMLAFATA also amended the Bank Holding Company Act and the Bank
Merger Act to require the federal banking regulatory authorities to consider the effectiveness of a financial institution's anti-money
laundering activities when reviewing an application to expand operations. The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank has in place a Bank
Secrecy Act compliance program.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On July 30, 2002, President Bush signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The stated goals of
the Act are to increase corporate responsibility, to provide for enhanced penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly
traded companies and to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures pursuant to the securities

laws.

The Act is the most far-reaching U.S. securities legislation enacted in decades. The Act generally applies to all companies, both U.S.
and non-U.S., that file or are required to file periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Due to the SEC’s extensive role in implementing rules relating to many of the Act’s new requirements, the
final scope of these requirements remains to be determined.
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The Act includes very specific additional disclosure requirements and new corporate governance rules, requires the SEC and securities
exchanges to adopt extensive additional disclosure, corporate governance and other related rules and mandates further studies of
certain issues by the SEC. The Act represents significant federal involvement in matters traditionally left to state regulatory systems,
such as the regulation of the accounting profession, and to state corporate law, such as the relationship between a board of directors
and management and between a board of directors and its committees.

The Act addresses, among other matters:
« audit committees for all reporting companies;

« certification of financial statements by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer;

» the forfeiture of bonuses or other incentive-based compensation and profits from the sale of an issuer's securities
by directors and senior officers in the twelve month period following initial publication of any financial
statemnents that later require restatement;

+ a prohibition on insider trading during pension plan black out periods;

« disclosure of off-balance sheet transactions;

» a prohibition on personal loans to directors and officers;

» expedited filing requirements for Forms 4's;

+ disclosure of a code of ethics and filing a Form 8-K for a change or waiver of such code;

+ "real time" filing of periodic reports;

+ the formation of a public accounting oversight board;

» auditor independence; and

* various increased criminal penalties for violations of securities laws,

Regulation W. Transactions between a bank and its “affiliates” are quantitatively and qualitatively restricted under the Federal
Reserve Act. The Federal Deposit Insurance Act applies Sections 23A and 23B to insured nonmember banks in the same manner and
to the same extent as if they were members of the Federal Reserve System. The Federal Reserve Board has also recently issued
Regulation W, which codifies prior regulations under Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and interpretative guidance
with respect to affiliate transactions.

Regulation W incorporates the exemption from the affiliate transaction rules but expands the exemption to cover the purchase of any
type of loan or extension of credit from an affiliate. Affiliates of a bank include, among other entities, the bank's holding company and
companies that are under common control with the bank. The company is considered to be an affiliate of the Bank.

Federal and State Legislation:

From time to time, various types of federal and state legislation have been proposed that could result in additional regulations and
restrictions on the business of the Company and the Bank. We cannot predict whether legislation will be adopted, or if adopted, how
the new laws would affect our business. As a consequence, we are susceptible to legislation that may increase the cost of doing
business. Management believes that the effect of any current legislative proposals on the liquidity, capital resources and the results of
operations of the Company and the Bank will be minimal.

Other specific regulatory recommendations which, if implemented, could have a material effect upon our liquidity, capital resources or

results of operations. In addition, the general cost of compliance with numerous federal and state laws does have, and in the future may
have, a negative impact on our results of operations.

-36-



Further, our business is also affected by the state of the financial services industry, in general. As a result of legal and industry
changes, management predicts that the industry will continue to experience an increase in consolidations as the financial industry
strives for greater cost efficiencies and market share. Management is optimistic that these consolidations may enhance the Bank's
competitive position as a community bank.

Future Outlook:

Based upon the current uncertain economic outlook and inability to predict when interest rate changes will occur, the Company
recognizes that there are challenges ahead. The Company is prepared to meet the challenges and effects of a changing interest rate
environment. The addition of key management personnel is an important step in addressing future challenges. Management believes
that a significant impact on earnings depends on its ability to react to changes in interest rates.

The Company will continue to monitor interest rate sensitivity of its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities to minimize
any adverse effects on future earnings. The Company’s commitment to remaining a community based organization is very strong.
Our intention is to recognize a steady disciplined growth in the loan portfolios, while increasing our base of core deposits. Review
and implementation of policies and procedures along with adding innovative products and services will continue. These steps are
designed to provide the Company with stability and the wherewithal to provide customer service and increase shareholder value.

Item 74: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information required by 7A is set forth at Item 7, under “Liquidity” and “Management of Interest Rate Risk and Market Risk
Analysis," contained within Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and
incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

PARENTERANDOLPH
773 Aver o //M:

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.
Dunmore, Pennsylvania:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(Dt /I/W s

Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania
January 28, 2005
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Assets:
Cash and due from banks 9,013,060 § 13,148,199
[nterest-bearing deposits with financial institutions 1,203,334 6,083,402
Total cash and cash equivalents 10,216,394 19,231,601
Held-to-maturity securities 3,056,305 4,712,142
Available-for-sale securities 117,181,213 139,695,232
Loans and leases, net (allowance for loan losses of
$5,987,798 in 2004 and $4,996,966 in 2003) 381,546,375 366,981,640
Loans available-for-sale (fair value $582,141 in
2004; $20,500,507 in 2003) 576,378 19,863,577
Accrued interest receivable 1,722,850 1,807,081
Bank premises and equipment, net 11,163,292 12,091,937
Foreclosed assets held for sale 213,104 467,166
Cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance 7,613,437 7,293,538
Other assets 3,385,790 3,071,552
Total assets 536,675,138 3 575,215,466
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Non-interest-bearing 65,357,535  § 64,398,658
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 93,986,033 112,857,420
Other interest-bearing deposits 206,271,767 224,186,468
Total deposits 365,615,335 401,442,546
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 3,039,809 3,208,009
Short-term borrowings 50,534,046 54,756,978
Long-term debt 71,119,188 71,876,034
Total liabilities 490,308,378 531,283,567
Shareolders' equity:
Preferred stock authorized 5,000,000 shares with no par
value; none issued - -
Capital stock authorized 10,000,000 shares with no par
value; issued and outstanding 1,839,572 shares in
2004 and 1,828,270 shares in 2003 10,072,134 9,698,879
Treasury stock, at cost - (196,048)
Retained earnings 36,396,027 34,641,976
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (101,401) (212,908)
Total shareholders' equity 46,366,760 43,931,899
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 536,675,138 § 575,215,466

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
Interest income:
Loans:
Taxable 3 21,793,474 $ 22,534,871 25,062,274
Nontaxable 319,188 400,674 576,516
Leases 153,446 298,318 526.194
Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions 5.919 6.051 16,623
Investment securities:
U.S. Government agency and corporations 4,362,455 4,486,310 7.479.520
States and political subdivisions (nontaxable) 481,481 477,327 476,601
Other securities 262,277 212,791 239,827
Federal funds sold 17,251 45,751 189,838
Total interest income 27,395,491 28,462,093 34,567,393
Interest expense:
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 2,974,337 4,731,839 5,928,991
Other deposits 3,762,459 5,299,440 7,356,522
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 463,663 503.131 996,133
Other short-term borrowings and long-term debt 3,963,945 3,686,166 3.583,127
Other 15,731 16.553 17,667
Total interest expense 11,180,135 14,237,129 17,882,440
Net interest income 16,215,356 14,224,964 16,684,953
Provision for loan losses 2,150,000 3,715,000 1,664,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 14,065,356 10,509.964 15,020,953
Other income
Service charges on deposit accounts 2,233,682 1,925,061 1,565,532
Gain on sale of:
Investment securities 9,497 329419 58,828
Loans 144,834 548.409 377,572
Loss on leased assets (290,679) (408,921) (48.349)
Loss on sale of foreclosed assets held for sale (15,256) (11.880) (3.222
Fees and other service charges 2,079.324 1,801,049 1,352,388
Total other income 4,161,402 4,183,137 3,302,749
Other expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 6.765,551 6,399,792 6,429,057
Premises and equipment 2,831,418 2,889,536 2,517,441
Advertising 430,667 336,046 396,865
Other 3,799,054 3,277,987 3,407,811
Total other expenses 13,826,650 12,903,361 12,751,174
Income before provision for income taxes 4,400,068 1,789,740 5,872,528
Provision for income taxes 1,035,594 146,492 1,526,355
Net income 5 3364474 3§ 1,643,248 4,046,173
Per share data:
Net income - basic 3 1.84 8 0.90 2.23
Net income - diluted $ 184 § 0.90 222
Dividends $ 0.88 g 0.88 0.84

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank (the “Bank™) (collectively, the
“Company”). All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and corporate customers in Lackawanna and
Luzerne Counties, Pennsylvania, This region has a diversified and fairly stable economy. The Company’s
primary deposit products are checking accounts, savings accounts, NOW accounts, money market deposit
accounts and certificates of deposit accounts. Its primary lending products are single-family residential loans,
secured consumer loans and secured loans to businesses. In addition to these traditional banking services, the
Company also provides annuities, mutual funds and trust services.

Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtor’s ability to honor their
contracts 1s dependent on the economic sector in which the Company operates. While management uses
available information to recognize losses on loans and foreclosed assets, future additions to the allowances for
loan losses and foreclosed assets may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition,
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s
allowances. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowances based on their
judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors, it is
reasonably possible that the allowances for loan losses and foreclosed assets may change materially in the near
future.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the
allowance for loan losses and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in
satisfaction of loans. In connection with the determination of allowances for losses on loans and foreciosed real
estate, management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties.
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HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

Debt securities for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at cost,
adjusted for premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income over the period to maturity.

TRADING SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities held principally for resale in the near term are recorded at their fair values.
Unrealized gains and losses are included in other income. The Company did not have any investment securities
held for trading purposes during 2004, 2003 or 2002.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

Available-for-sale securities consist of debt and equity securities not classified as either held-to-maturity
securities or trading securities and are reported at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of deferred
income taxes, on available-for-sale securities are reported as a net amount as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, until realized. These net unrealized holding gains and losses are the sole component of
accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income.

LOANS

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are
stated at face value, net of unearned income, unamortized loan fees and costs and the allowance for loan losses.
Interest on residential real estate loans is recorded on an amortized schedule. Commercial loan interest is
accrued on the principal balance on an actual day basis. Interest on consumer loans is determined using the
actuarial method or the simple interest method.

The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in the opinion of management, there is an
indication that the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. Any payments received on
impaired loans are applied, first to the outstanding loan amounts, then to the recovery of any charged-off loan
amounts. Any excess is treated as a recovery of lost interest.

LOANS HELD FOR SALE

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair
value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to
income. Unrealized gains are recognized to the extent of previous write-downs.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses. The allowance represents an
amount which, in management’s judgment, will be adequate to absorb losses on existing loans and leases that
may become uncollectible. Management’s judgment in determining the adequacy of the allowance is based on
evaluations of the collectibility of the loans. These evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in
the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to
pay, overall portfolio quality and review of specific impaired loans. Loans considered uncollectible are charged
to the allowance. Recoveries on loans previously charged off are added to the allowance.
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A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments in accordance to the contractual terms of the loan. Factors
considered in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting
payments when due. The significance of payment delays and/or shortfalls is determined on a case by case basis.
All circumstances surrounding the loan are taken into account. Such factors include the length of the
delinquency, the underlying reasons and the borrower’s prior payment record. Impairment is measured on these

loans on a loan by loan basis.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the
Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures.

LEASES

Financing of equipment and automobiles is provided to customers under lease arrangements accounted for as
direct financing leases. Income earned is based on a constant periodic return on the net investment in the lease.

LoaN FEES

Nonrefundable loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are recognized over the life of the
related loans as an adjustment of yield. The unamortized balance of these fees and costs are included as part of
the loan balance to which it relates.

BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Land is carried at cost. Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease or the estimated useful
lives of the improved property.

LLOAN SERVICING AND LOAN SERVICING RIGHTS

The Company services real estate loans for investors in the secondary mortgage market, which are not included
in the balance sheet. The cost of mortgage servicing rights is amortized in proportion to, and over the period of,
estimated net servicing revenues. For purposes of measuring impairment, the rights are stratified based on the
present dominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans, stated term of the loan and interest rate. The
amount of impairment recognized is the amount by which the capitalized mortgage servicing rights for a stratum
exceeds its fair value. Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on a current market interest
rate.

BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE

The Company is the owner and beneficiary of bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) policies on certain
employees. The earnings from the BOLI are recognized as a component of other income. The BOLI is an asset
that can be liquidated, if necessary, with tax costs associated. However, the Company intends to hold these
policies and, accordingly, the Bank has not provided for deferred income taxes on the earnings from the increase

in cash surrender value.
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FORECLOSED ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell. Losses from the
acquisition of property in full and partial satisfaction of debt are treated as credit losses. Routine holding costs
and write downs for subsequent declines in value are included in other operating expenses.

STOCK OPTIONS

At December 31, 2004, the Company has two stock-based compensation plans, which are described more fully
in Note 9. The Company accounts for these plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations. No stock-based
employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted under these plans had an exercise
price equal to the fair value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates
the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
to stock-based employee compensation for each of the years ended December 31, (dollars in thousand except for

per share data):

2004 2003 2002
Net income, as reported $3,364 $1,643 $4,046
Less: total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of tax - - (7
Pro forma net income $3.364 $1,643 4.03
Earnings per share:
Basic — as reported $1.84 $0.90 $2.23
Basic — pro forma $1.84 $0.90 $2.22-
Diluted — as reported $1.84 $0.90 $2.21
Diluted ~ pro forma $1.84 $0.90 $2.18

The Company did not grant stock options in 2004 or 2003.

For purposes of the pro forma calculations, the fair value of each option is estimated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions for grants issued in 2002:

Dividend yield 3.79%
Expected volatility 591%
Risk-free interest rate 3.62%
. Expected lives 5 years
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TRUST AND FINANCIAL SERVICE FEES

Trust and financial service fees are recorded on the cash basis, which is not materially different from the accrual
basis.

ADVERTISING COSTS

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. For the years December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
advertising costs amounted to approximately $431,000, $336,000 and $397,000, respectively.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Cash and short-term instruments: The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate their
fair value.

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities: Fair values for securities are based on bid prices received
from securities dealers. Restricted equity securities are carried at cost.

Loans receivable: The fair value of all loans is estimated by the net present value of the future expected cash
flows.

Loans available for sale: For loans available for sale, the fair value is estimated using rates currently offered
for similar borrowings and are stated at the lower of cost or market.

Deposit liabilities: The fair value of demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings accounts and money market
deposits is estimated by the net present value of the future expected cash flows. For certificates of deposit, the
discount rates used reflect the Company’s current market pricing. The discount rates used for non-maturity

deposits are the current book rate of the deposits.

Short-term borrowings: For short-term borrowings, the fair value is estimated using the rates currently offered

for similar borrowings.

Long-term debt: For other borrowed funds, the fair value is estimated using the rates currently offered for
similar borrowings.

Accrued interest: The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values.
Off-balance-sheet instruments: Commitments to extend credit are generally short-term and are priced to
market. The rates on standby letters of credit are priced on prime. Therefore, the estimated fair value of these
financial instruments is face value.

INCOME TAXES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in

which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates
are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.
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CASH FLOWS

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, amounts due from banks

and interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, the Company paid interest of $16,500,384,
$14,674,100 and $18,934,972, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, the
Company paid cash for income taxes of $1,200,000, $869,561 and $1,040,000, respectively.

Transfers from loans to foreclosed assets held for sale amounted to $504.415, $1,560,832 and $835,741 in 2004,
2003, and 2002, respectively. Non-cash investing activities also included transferring $12,807,221 from loans
available-for-sale to loans in 2004 and $2,871,752 from loans to loans available-for-sale in 2002.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2002 financial statements to conform to the current presentation.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) and related tax effects are as follows:

2004

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale

securities $178,447
Less reclassification adjustment for gains realized in

income (9.497)
Net unrealized gains (losses) 168,950
Tax effect (57.443)
Net of tax amount $111,507

2. CASH

2003 2002
$(1,910,175) $3,888,024
(329.419) (58.828)
(2,239,594) 3,829,196
761.462 (1.301.926)
$(1.,478,132) $2.527,270

The Company is required by the Federal Reserve Bank to maintain average reserve balances based on a percentage
of deposits. The amounts of those reserve requirements on December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $616,000 and

$569,000, respectively.

Deposits with any one financial institution are insured up to $100,000. From time-to-time, the Company maintains
cash and cash equivalents with certain other financial institutions in excess of the insured amount.
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

Held to maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed securities

Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government agencies and
Corporations
Obligations of states and political
Subdivisions
Corporate bonds
Mortgage-backed securities

Total debt

Equity securities:
Restricted
Other

Total

Held to maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed securities

Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government agencies and
Corporations
Obligations of states and political
Subdivisions
Corporate bonds
Mortgage-backed securities

Total debt
Equity securities:
Restricted

Other

Total

Amortized
cost

$§_3.056

§ 31,006
11,043
9,034
61,404
112,487
4,568
279

$117.334

unrealized
gains

$137

322

Gross
unrealized
losses

s -

$ 511

25
324

364

3864

Fair
value

$ 3.194

$ 30,496
11,199
9,035
61,402
112,132
4,568
481

$117,181

e 2003,

Amortized
cost

$ 4712

$ 37,040
13,190
3,991
80,765
134,986
4,753
279

3140018
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Gross
unrealized

gains

$196

$ 61

123
16

667

—
~
(el

|

o0
8]
~1

|

Gross
unrealized
losses

1,160

Fair
value

$ 4908

§ 36,323
13,276
4,007
80,887
134,493

4,753
449

$139,695




There are no significant concentrations of investments (greater than 10 percent of shareholders’ equity) in any
individual security issuer other than securities of the United States government and agencies.

Most of the Company’s debt and equity securities are pledged to secure trust funds, public deposits, repurchase
agreements, other short-term borrowings, Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (“"FHLB”) borrowings, Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia Discount Window borrowings and certain other deposits as required by law. U.S.
government securities pledged on repurchase agreements are under the Company’s control.

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2004 by contractual maturity are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or repay
obligations with or without call or repayment penalties.

Amortized Fair
cost value
(in thousands)

Held-to-maturity securities
Mortgage-backed securities $_3.056 $§ 3194

Available-for-sale securities
Debt securities:

Due in one year or less $ - $ -
Due after one year through five years 5,430 5,392
Due after five years through ten years 19,530 19,352
Due after ten years 26,123 25,986
Total debt securities 51,083 50,730
Mortgage-backed securities 61,404 61,402
Equity securities 4.847 5,049
Total available-for-sale securities $117,334 $117,181
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The following table presents gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments aggregated by investment

category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December
31, 2004 and 2003(in thousands):

....Less than 12 months.... ... 12 months or more......  ............... Total..............
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
December 31, 2004 value Losses value losses value losses

U.S. government
agencies and
corporations §15,778 $ 222 $9,711 $ 289 $25,489 $ 511
Obligations of states
and political

subdivisions 1,673 4 - - 1,673 4
Mortgage-backed

securities 26,859 197 8,716 127 35,575 324

Corporate bonds 5,014 25 - - 5,014 25

Subtotal, debt
securities 49,324 448 18,427 416 67,751 864

Equity securities

Total temporarily
impaired
securities

3
i3

448 $ 18,427 § 416 $67.751 $864

December 31, 2003

U.S. government
agencies and
corporations $26,232 $ (778) $ - $ - $26,232 $ (778)
Obligations of states
and political

subdivisions 4,327 (345) - - 4,327 (345)
Mortgage-backed
securities 39,997 3D - - 39,997 (37)

Subtotal, debt
securities 70,556 (1,160} 70,556 (1,160)

Equity securities - - - - - -

Total temporarily
impaired

securities $70.556 $(1,160) $ - $ - $70,556 $(1.160)

The investments in debt securities have not been significantly impaired. The unrealized losses are primarily the
result of volatility in interest rates. The debt securities considered temporarily impaired are approximately 1.3%
below cost at December 31, 2004. Based on the credit worthiness of the issuers, in conjunction with interest rate
volatility, management determined that the debt securities were not other-than-temporarily impaired.
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Gross realized gains and losses on sales of available-for-sale securities, determined using specific identification of

the securities were as follows:

Gross realized gains
Gross realized losses

L.OANS AND LEASES

2004 2003
$19,978 $329,419
10,481

o
S
(3]

$58,828

The major classifications of loans and leases at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows:

Commercial and commercial real estate
Residential real estate

Consumer

Real estate construction

Direct financing leases

Total
Less:
Unearned income

Allowance for loan losses

Loans and leases, net

]
{am)
e

$221,968,137
91,294,401
61,487,608
10,620,472

2.211.978

387,582,596
48,423
5.987.798

$381,546,375

o

03

$221,275,922
77,077,315
62,919,070
7,267,616
3,685,802

372,225,725
247,119
4.996.966

$366,981.640

Net deferred loan costs of $372,778 and $305,155 have been added to the carrying value of loans at December 31,

2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company has no concentration of loans to borrowers engaged in similar businesses or activities which exceed

five percent of total assets at December 31, 2004 or 2003.

Impaired loans information is as follows:

At December 31:
Accruing loans that are contractually past due 90 days
or more as to principal or interest
Amount of impaired loans that have a specific allowance
Amount of impaired loans with no specific allowance
Allowance for impaired loans
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$ 557,492
15,552,895
3,190,794
2,123,315

$ 957,971
14,898,872
2,964,967
2,533,842



During the year ended December 31: 2004 2003
Average investment in impaired loans 10,817,639 8,428,334
Interest income recognized on impaired loans (cash basis) 1,044,673 574,355
Principal collected on impaired loans 2,788,053 2,205,023

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows:
2004 2003 2002
Balance, beginning $4,996,966 $3,899,753 $3,741,933
Recoveries 447,772 478,297 443189
Provision for loan losses 2,150,000 3,715,000 1,664,000
Losses charged to allowance (1.606.,940) (3.096.084) (1,949.369)
Balance, ending $5,987.798 $4,996,966 $3,899,753

For federal income tax purposes, the allowance for loan losses was $5,987,798, $4,976,228 and $3,879,015 at
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. The amounts deducted for loan losses in the federal income tax
returns were $1,159,168 in 2004, $2,617,787 in 2003 and $1,352,428 in 2002. These amounts were the maximum

allowable deduction.

The Company services real estate loans for investors in the secondary mortgage market which are not included in

the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The approximate amount of mortgages serviced amounted to

$57,939,000 at December 31, 2004 and $56,021,000 at December 31, 2003.

The following table sets forth the activity in mortgage service rights (MSR) for the years ended December 31:

2004
Balance, beginning $ 347,212
Additions 144,246
Amortization (101.389)
Balance, ending $ 390,069

2003

$ 422,634

231,663
(307.085)
$347.212

2002

$ 327,690

228,004
(133.060)
$422.634

The fair value of mortgage servicing rights are estimated using a discounted cash flow technique which combines a

discount rate and prepayment speeds that range from 5.2% to 8.0%. The Company recognized gains on the sale of

loans of $144,000 in 2004, $232,000 in 2003, and $228,000 in 2002.
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5. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

6.

Components of bank premises and equipment at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows:

2004 2003

Land $ 1,054,330 $ 1,054,330
Bank premises 7,469,594 7,469,594
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,331,548 7,397,551
Leasehold improvements 3.021.256 3,019,928
Total 18,876,728 18,941,403

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 7.713.436 6,849,466
Bank premises and equipment, net $11,163,292 $12,091.937

The Company leases its Green Ridge, Scranton, Pittston, West Pittston, Moosic, Kingston, Peckville, Clarks Summit
and Eynon branches under the terms of operating leases. Rental expense was $386,980 for 2004, $382,001 for 2003
and $353,589 for 2002. The future minimum rental payments at December 31, 2004 under these leases are as

follows:

Year ending December 31,

2003
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010 and thereafter

Total

Amount

$ 354,723
341,600
343,018
344,478
345,981

4,240,349

$5,970,149

Amortization of leasehold improvements is included in depreciation expense.

DEPOSITS

At December 31, 2004, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows:

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
Thereafter

$81,761,495 44.27%
66,784,043 36.16
22,658,900 12.27

4,110,209 2.23

9,346,769 5.06

21,610 0.01
$184.683,026 100.00%

-54 -




7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings are as follows at December 31:
004 2003 2002

$40,684,343 $39,363,052 $47,231,946

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Demand note, U.S. Treasury 1,089,703 473,926 1,131,068
Federal funds purchased 8,760,000 14,920,000 2,850,000
Total $50,534.046 $54,756,978 $51,213.014

The maximum and average amounts of short-term borrowings outstanding and related interest rates for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Maximum Weighted
outstanding average
at any Average rate during Rate at
2004 month end outstanding the year year end
Federal funds purchased $17,997,400 $ 4,931,714 1.50% 2.21%
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements 44,194,836 41,695,108 1.11% 1.23%
Demand note, U. S. Treasury 1,089.703 750.719 1.14% 1.88%
Total $63,281,939 $47.377,541
2003
Federal funds purchased $17,900,000 $ 3,716,192 1.26% 1.03%
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements 46,285,260 41,326,103 1.22% 0.80%
Demand note, U. S. Treasury 1.119.775 716.817 0.93% 0.73%
Total $65,305.035 $45,759.112
2002
Federal funds purchased $ 3,000,000 $ 108,767 1.68% 1.48%
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements 52,280,479 45,871,723 2.17% 1.35%
Demand note, U. S. Treasury 1,145,783 654.747 1.58% 1.10%
Total $56,426,262 $46.635.237

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) are secured short-term borrowings, and
generally mature within 1 to 89 days from the transaction date. Repurchase agreements are reflected at the amount
of cash received in connection with the transaction. The carrying value of the underlying securities is approximately
$40,700,000, $39,500,000 and $47,300,000 at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Bank may be
required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying securities. The demand note, U. S.
Treasury is generally repaid within 1 to 90 days.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $99,947.000 available to borrow from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Pittsburgh and approximately $25,061,000 that it can borrow at the Discount Window from the
Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia. There were no borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank Discount Window
at December 31, 2004, 2003 or 2002.
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LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of advances from the FHLB with interest rates ranging from 2.60% to 6.22% at December
31, 2004. These advances are secured by unencumbered U.S. government agency securities, mortgage-backed

securities, U.S. Treasury notes and certain residential mortgages.

At December 31, 2004, the maturities and weighted-average interest rates of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending December 31 Amount Rate

2006 $ 2,000,000 2.60%
2007 3,000,000 2.62
2008 13,119,188 428
2010 48,000,000 5.74
2013 5,000,000 3.61

Total $71,119,188 5.10%

STOCK PLANS

At December 31, 2004, the Company has reserved 100,000 shares of its unissued capital stock for issuance under a
dividend reinvestment plan. Shares issued under this plan are valued at fair value as of the dividend payment date.
At December 31, 2004, 66,838 shares are available for future issuance.

The Company has established the 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and has reserved 100,000 shares of its
unissued capital stock for issuance under the plan. Under the 2002 Employee Purchase Plan, employees may have
automatic payroll deductions to purchase the Company’s capital stock at a discounted price based on the fair market
value of the Company’s capital stock on either the commencement date or termination date. At December 31, 2004,
2,899 shares were issued under the plan.

The Company has established the 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan and has reserved 50,000 shares of
its unissued capital stock for issuance under the plan. Under the 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan,
each outside director is awarded stock options to purchase 500 shares of the Company’s common stock on the first
business day of January, each year, at the fair market value on date of grant. In 2002, 4,500 stock options with a
ten-year life were awarded. No stock options were awarded in 2004 or 2003 due to the directors’ voluntary election
to forego the award. At December 31, 2004, there were 13,500 unexercised stock options outétanding under this
plan.

The Company has established the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and has reserved 50,000 shares of its unissued capital
stock for issuance under the plan. Under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, key officers and certain other employees
are eligible to be awarded qualified stock options to purchase the Company’s common stock at the fair market value
on the date of grant. In 2002, 4,000 qualified stock options with a ten-year life were awarded. No stock options
were awarded in 2004 and 2003. As of December 31, 2004, there were 5,200 unexercised stock options outstanding
under this plan.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans as of December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, and
changes during the year ended is presented below:

Weighted-average

Shares exercise price
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, 2001 19,300 $34.33
Granted 8,500 37.50
Exercised (400) 31.00
Forfeited (1.500) 34.21
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, 2002 25,900 35.43
Granted - -
Exercised (800) 35.81
Forfeited (400) 37.50
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, 2003 24,700 35.39
Granted - -
Exercised (500) 31.00
Forfeited (5,500) 35.34
Outstanding, December 31, 2004 18,700 $35.52

The following table summarizes all stock options outstanding and exercisable for the plans as of December 31,
2004, segmented by exercise prices:

Remaining
contractual
Exercise prices Number life
$31.00 3,400 4 years
35.13 4,300 S years
36.50 4,800 6 years
37.50 6,200 7 years

Total 18,700

The stock options have a weighted-average life of 5.7 years.
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10. INCOME TAXES

The following temporary differences gave rise to the deferred tax asset (liability) at December 31:

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses
Retirement settlement reserve
Deferred compensation

Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities

Other

Total

Deferred tax liabilities:
Leasing
Depreciation
Loan fees and costs
Other

Total

Deferred tax asset, net

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

Current
Deferred

Total provision

2004

$1,661,588
(625.994)

$1,035,594

2004 2003
$2,035,851 $1,691,918
153,914 )
90,868 101,904
52,237 109,680
21,404 37.886
2354274 1,941,388
(431,900) (702,933)
(536,393) (567,983)
(291,658) (188,033)
(250.602) (207.269)
(1,510,553) (1.666.218)
$ 843721 $ 275,170
2003 2002
$711,062 $1,294,424
(564.570) 231,931
$146,492 $1.526.355

The reconciliation between the expected statutory income tax and the actual provision for income taxes is as

follows:

Expected provision at the statutory rate
Tax-exempt income

Nondeductible interest expense

Bank owned life insurance

Other nondeductible expenses

Low income housing tax credits

Other, net

Actual provision for income taxes

.58 -

2004

$1,496,023
(297,236)
29,748
(108,766)
33,977
(118,152)

$1,035.594

2003 2002
$608,510 $1,894,659
(312,287) (379,139)

36,934 52,129
(99,803) -
31,290 41,574
(118,152) (118,152)
: 35.284
$146.492 $1,526,355




11.

12.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company has a defined profit sharing 401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. The plan is
subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). Contributions to the
plan were $196,749 in 2004, $214,756 in 2003 and $246,201 in 2002.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of
the amount recognized in the balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent
of the Company’s involvement in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss from nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those
instruments, The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it
does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

A summary of the notional amounts of the Bank’s financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at December 31,
2004 follows:

Notional

amount
Commitments to extend credit $69,086,000
Standby letters of credit 5,811,000

Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to customers. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fees. Since commitments may
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future liquidity
requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if considered necessary by the Company on extension of credit, is based on management’s credit

assessment of the customer.

Financial standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee performance of
a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are issued primarily to support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing, and similar transactions. The Company’s performance
under the guarantee is required upon presentation by the beneficiary of the financial standby letter of credit. The
credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The Company does not have any recourse provisions or hold any assets that would enable it to recover
from third parties any of the amounts paid under the guarantee. The Company was not required to recognize any
liability in connection with the issuance of these financial standby letters of credit.
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The following table summarizes outstanding financial letters of credit as of December 31, 2004 (in thousands):

Less than One to five Qver five
one year years years Total
Secured by:
Collateral $2,582 $67 $2,923 $5,572
Guarantees 130 24 - 154
Bank lines of credit 44 - - 44
2,756 91 2,923 5,770
Unsecured 41 - - 4
Total 2,797 $91 $2.923 5,811

The Company has not incurred any losses on its commitments in 2004, 2003 or 2002.

The carrying or notional amount and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments were as follows at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

2004 2003
Carrying Carrying
or or
notional Estimated notional Estimated
amount fair value amount fair value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,216 $ 10,216 $ 19,232 $ 19,232
Held-to-maturity securities 3,056 3,194 4,712 4,908
Available-for-sale securities 117,181 117,181 139,695 139,695
Loans and leases 381,546 382,824 366,982 369,914
Loans available for sale 576 582 19,864 20,501
Accrued interest 1,723 1,723 1,807 1,807
Financial liabilities:
Deposit liabilities $365,615 $365,920 $401,443 $404,484
Short-term borrowings 50,534 50,518 54,757 54,757
Long-term debt 71,119 75,969 71,876 79,146
Accrued interest 985 985 1,270 1,270
Off-balance sheet liabilities:
Commitments to extend credit 69,086 69,086 84,050 84,050
Standby letters of credit 5,811 5,811 6,599 6,599
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed using the weighted-average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Diluted EPS is computed the same as basic EPS but reflects the potential dilution of common stock
equivalents. Dilution would occur if “in-the-money” stock options were exercised and converted into common stock.
The Company uses the treasury stock method to determine the dilutive effect of its unexercised stock options. Under
this method, the proceeds received from shares issued in a hypothetical exercise of stock options is assumed to be
used to purchase treasury stock.

The following data illustrates the data used in computing earnings per share and the effects on income and the
weighted-average number of shares of potentially dilutive common stock for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002.

Income Common shares
numerator denominator EPS
2004 $3,364,474 1,830,725 $1.84
Basic EPS
Dilutive effect of potential common stock
Stock options:
Exercise of options outstanding 3,400
Hypothetical share repurchase at $33.90 (3.109)
Diluted EPS $3.364.474 1.831.016 1.84
2003 $1,643,248 1,820,403 $0.90
Basic EPS
Dilutive effect of potential common stock
Stock options:
Exercise of options outstanding 16,600
Hypothetical share repurchase at $37.00 (15413)
Diluted EPS $1,643,248 1,821,590 0.90
2002
Basic EPS $4,046,173 1,817,430 $2.23
Dilutive effect of potential common stock
Stock options:
Exercise of options outstanding 25,900
Hypothetical share repurchase at $38.25 (23.991)
Diluted EPS $4,046.173 1,819,339 2.22
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14. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Company’s and the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines
that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by
the regulators about components, risk-weightings and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not
applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures, established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy, require the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). As
of December 31, 2004, the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
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To be categorized as well capitalized the Company must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based and
Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table. The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are

also presented in the table. No amounts were deducted from capital for interest-rate risk in either 2004 or 2003.

As of December 31, 2004:
Total capita!
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated
Bank

Tier I capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated
Bank

Tier | capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated
Bank

As of December 31, 2003:
Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated
Bank

Tier I capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated
Bank

Tier I capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated
Bank

For capital

To be well capitalized
under prompt corrective

Actual adequacy purposes action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$51,359,380  13.3% 2$30,879,151 >8.0% N/A N/A
$51,032,749 13.2% 2$30,879,966 28.0% $38,599,957 210.0%
$46,429,154  12.0% >2$15,439,576 24.0% N/A N/A
$46,183,330 12.0% >$15,439,983 24.0% $23,159,974  26.0%
$46,429,154 8.6% >$21,665,350 24.0% N/A N/A
$46,183,330 8.5% 2$21,651,008 24.0% $27,063,760  25.0%
$49,938,524  12.9% >$30,391,532 28.0% N/A N/A
$48,977,279  12.9% 2$30,390,364 28.0% $37,987,955 >10.0%
$44,110,086  11.6% 2515,195,676 24.0% N/A N/A
$44,148,993  11.6% >$15,195,182 24.0% $22792773  26.0%
$44,110,086 7.7% 2$22,857,147 24.0% N/A N/A
$44,148,993 7.7% >$22,857,147 24.0% $28.571,434  =25.0%

The Bank can pay dividends to the Company equal to the Bank’s retained earnings which approximated
$37,400,000 at December 31, 2004. However, such dividends are limited due to the capital requirements discussed

above.
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15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the ordinary course of business, loans are made to executive officers, directors, shareholders and associates

of such persons. These transactions are executed on substantially the same terms and at the rates prevailing at the

time for comparable transactions with others. These loans do not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility
or present other unfavorable features. A summary of loan activity with officers, directors, associates of such persons
and shareholders who own more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding shares is as follows:

Balance, beginning
Adjustments for loans to individuals no

longer officers, directors, associates or greater

than 5% shareholders
Loans sold/participated
Additions
Collections

Balance, ending

2004 2003
$10,125,429 $11,692,596
(473,612) (221,750)
(260,000) (758,680)
1,183,788 1,367,263
(1,332.319) (1,954.,000)
$9.243,286 $10,125,429

2002

$ 6,225,458

10,146,773
(4,679.635)

311,692,596

Aggregate loans to directors and associates exceeding 2.5% of shareholders” equity included in the table above are

as follows:

Number of persons

Balance, beginning

Loans sold/participated

Additions

Collections

Prior loan balances no longer exceeding threshold

Balance, ending

- 64 -

2004 2003 2002

2 3 3
$9,386,280 $10,691,179 $ 5,597,515
- (753,296) -
480,580 444,184 9,609,764
(748,322) (995,787) (4,516,100)
(1.228.463) - -
$7,890,075 $9,386,280 $10.691.179




16. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and

2002:
First Second Third Fourth
2004 quarter quarter uarter uarter Total

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Interest income $6,963 $6,813 $6,738 $6,881 $27,395
Interest expense (3.030) (2,722) (2.720) (2,708) (11,180)
Net interest income 3,933 4,091 4,018 4,173 16,215
Provision for loan losses (850) (400) (450) (450) (2,150)
Gain on sale of investment securities 9 - - - 9
Other income 937 1,071 1,149 - 995 4,152
Other expenses (3.275) (3.539) (3.658) (3.354) (13.826)
Income before income taxes 754 1,223 1,059 1,364 4,400
Provision for income taxes 129) (302) (245) (360) (1,036)
Net income 625 $ 921 $ 814 $ 1.004 § 3364
Net income per share $ 034 0.50 $ 045 § 055 1.84

First Second Third Fourth
2003 quarter quarter uarter quarter Total

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Interest income $7.638 $7,147 $6,783 $6,894 $28,462
Interest expense (3.806) (3,718) (3.443) (3.270) 14,237)
Net interest income 3,832 3,429 3,340 3,624 14,225
Provision for loan losses (300) (460) (300) (2,655) (3,715
Gain on sale of investment securities 82 132 - 115 329
Other income 875 1,129 1,021 829 3,854
Other expenses (3,295) (3.014) (3.193) (3,401) (12,903)
Income (loss) before provision for 1,194 1,216 868 (1,488) 1,790

income taxes

(Provision) benefit for income taxes (307) (293) (183) 636 (147)
Net income (loss) $ 887 $ 923 $ 685 852 $ 1,643
Net income (loss) per share 0.49 0.49 0.38 0.46 $ 090
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17.

18.

First Second Third Fourth
uarter quarter quatter quarter Total
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Interest income $8,730 $8,759 $8,556 $8,522 $34,567
Interest expense (4.648) (4.566) (4.481) (4.187) (17.882)
Net interest income 4,082 4,193 4,075 4335 16,685
Provision for loan losses (460) (496) (220) (488) (1,664)
Gain (loss)on sale of investment securities 20 40 (H - 59
QOther income 952 939 738 614 3,243
Other expenses (3.144) (3.158) (3.302) (3.147) (12,751)
Income before provision for
income taxes 1,450 1,518 1,290 1,314 5,572
Provision for income taxes (372) (409) 357 (388) _(1,526)
Net income $1,078 1,109 3 933 $ 926 $ 4,046
Net income per share $ 059 $ 061 0.51 $ 052 § 223

CONTINGENCIES

The nature of the Company’s business generates some litigation involving matters arising in the ordinary course of
business. However, in the opinion of management of the Company after consulting with the Company’s legal
counsel, no legal proceedings are pending, which, if determined adversely to the Company or the Bank, would have
a material effect on the Company’s shareholders’ equity or results of operations. No legal proceedings are pending
other than ordinary routine litigation incident to the business of the Company and the Bank. In addition, to
management’s knowledge, no government authorities have initiated or contemplated any material legal actions
against the Company or the Bank.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2003, the FASB lIssued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics
of Both Liabilities and Equity. This statement establishes how an issuer classifies financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify these financial instruments as a
liability (or, in certain circumstances, an asset). Previously, these financial instruments would have been classified
entirely as equity, or between the liabilities and equity section of the balance sheet. This statement also addresses
questions about the classification of certain financial instruments that embody obligations to issue equity shares.
The provisions of this statement are effective for interim periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this
statement did not have an effect on the Company’s earnings, financial condition or equity.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, in an effort to
expand upon and strengthen existing accounting guidance that addresses when a company should include in 1ts
financial statements the assets, liabilities and activities of another entity. The objective of this interpretation is not to
restrict the use of variable interest entities but to improve financial reporting by companies involved with variable
interest entities. Prior to this interpretation, one company generally has included another entity in its consolidated
financial statements only if it controlled the entity through voting interests. This interpretation changes that by
requiring a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the
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risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities or entitlied to receive a majority of the entity’s residual
returns or both. The consolidation requirements of this interpretation apply immediately to variable interest entities
created after January 31, 2003. The consolidation requirements apply to older entities in the first fiscal year or
interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Certain of the disclosure requirements apply in all financial
statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of when the variable interest entity was established. The
adoption of the interpretation did not have an effect on the Company’s earnings, financial condition or equity.

In March 2004, the FASB issued Emerging [ssues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments. This statement provides guidance for evaluating
whether an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired and was effective for the other-than-temporary
impairment evaluations made in the reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004. The FASB staff has issued a
proposed Board-directed FASB Staff Position, FSP EITF Issue 03-1-a, Implementation Guidance for the
Application of Paragraph 16 of EITF Issue No. 03-1. The proposed FSP would provide implementation guidance
with respect to debt securities that are impaired solely due to interest rates and/or sector spreads and analyzed for
other-than-temporary impairment under paragraph 16 of Issue 03-1. In September 2004, based on comment letters
received by constituents, the Board decided to further consider whether application guidance is necessary for all
securities analyzed for impairment under paragraph 10-20 of I[ssue 03-1. The delay did not inciude the disclosure
provisions which will remain in effect until the full reconsideration of Issue 03-01 guidance is completed. The
Company will delay the effective application until the implementation guidance is finalized.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R) which replaces SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, and supersedes APB Opinion 23, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123(R) requires
that the cost of share-based payment transactions (including those with employees and non-employees) be
recognized in the financial statements. SFAS 123(R) applies to all share-based payment transactions in which an
entity acquires goods or services by issuing (or offering to issue) its shares, share options, or other equity
instruments (except for those held by an ESOP) or by incurring liabilities (1) in amounts based (even in part) on the
price of the entity’s shares or other equity instruments, or (2) that require (or may require) settlement by the issuance
of an entity’s shares or other equity instruments. Public entities such as the Company are not required to apply
SFAS 123(R) until the beginning of the first interim reporting period or fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2005.
The Company does not plan early implementation of the provisions of SFAS 123(R).
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19. PARENT COMPANY ONLY

The following is condensed financial information for Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. on a parent company only basis

(in thousands):

Condensed Balance Sheets

Assets:
Cash
Investment in subsidiary

Securities available-for-sale
Other

Total
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Liabilities
Shareholders’ equity

Total

Condensed Income Statements

Income:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary
Dividends from subsidiary
Other income
Total income
Operating expenses
Income before income taxes

Credit for income taxes

Net income
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2004

$ 2311

1,15
|

3,480

6

_ 13

December 31,

2004 2003
$ 5 S 2
46,002 43,971
452 -
- 12
$46.459 $43.985
$ 92 $ 53
46.367 43.932
$46.459 $43,985
Years ended December 31,
2003 2002
$ 182 $2,598
1,590 1,542
1,772 4,140
195 142
1,577 3,998
66 48
$1.643 $4.046




Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
used in operations:
Equity in earnings of subsidiary
Deferred income taxes
Changes in other assets and liabilities, net

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Dividends received from subsidiary

Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid, net of dividend reinvestment
Exercise of stock options
Withholdings to purchase capital stock
Purchase of treasury stock
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning

Cash, ending

2004

$ 3,364

(3,467)
2
an

112

Years ended
December 31,

2003 2002
$ 1,643 $4,046
(1,772) (4,140)
(66) 2
54 24
(141) (68)
1,590 1,542
(1,081) (1,047
30 15
60 39
(458) (480)
(1.449) (1.473)
; 1
2 1
$ 2 )
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Item 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A4: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the
Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based upon their evaluation of those controls
and procedures performed within 90 days of the filing date of this report, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers of the
Company concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were adequate.

PART 11

Item 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The information required under ltems 401 and 406 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented
in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the SEC. \\
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The information required under this section is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the Company’s
definitive Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the SEC.

Item 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the Company’s 2005
definitive Proxy Statement.

Item 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the Company’s 2005
definitive Proxy Statement.

Item 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item, relating to transactions with management and others, certain business relationships and
indebtedness of management, is set forth above in Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” and is incorporated by
reference herein to the information presented in the Company’s 2005 definitive Proxy Statement.

Item 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this [tem is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the Company’s 2005
definitive Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15: EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON
FORM 8-K

(a) (1) Financial Statements - The following financial statements are included by reference in Part 11, Item 8 hereof:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Consolidated Statements of Income.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2)Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statement Schedules are omitted because the required information is either not applicable, the data is not
significant or the required information is shown in the respective financial statements or in the notes thereto or elsewhere
herein.

(3)Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference as a part of this Form 10-K:

3(i) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to
Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November 3, 1999 and as
amended on April 6, 2000.

3(ii) Bylaws of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-
90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November 3, 1999 and as amended on April 6, 2000,

10.1 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-
4, filed with the SEC on November 3, 1999 and as amended on April 6, 2000.

10.2 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on
November 3, 1999 and as amended on April 6, 2000.

10.3 Form of Deferred Compensation Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's Registration Statement No0.333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September 12,
2000 and as amended on October 11, 2000.

10.4 Registrant’s 2000 Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September 12, 2000 and as amended by Pre-Effective
Amendment No. | on October 11, 2000 and by Post-Effective Amendment No. | on May 30, 2001.

10.5 Registrant’s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-§ filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

10.6 Registrant’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001,
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(b)
(c)

10.7 Registrant’s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement No. 333-113339 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on March 5, 2004.

10.8 Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank and
Steven C. Ackmann, dated June 21, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 24, 2004.

11 Statement regarding computation of earnings per share. Included herein in Note 13 “Earnings per Share”™,
contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements, and incorporated herein by reference.

12 Statement regarding computation of ratios. Included herein in Item 6, “Selected Financial Data”.

13 Annual Report to Shareholders. Incorporated by reference to the 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders filed with
the SEC on Form ARS.

14 Code of Ethics. Incorporated by reference to the 2003 Annual Report to Shareholders on Form 10-K filed with the
SEC on March 29, 2004.

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer, filed herewith.
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer, filed herewith.

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

32.2 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

The exhibits required to be filed by this Item are listed under Item 15(a) 3, above.

Not dpplicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: March 29, 20035 By: /s/ Steven C. Ackmann
Steven C. Ackmann, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 29, 2005 By: /s/ Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following person
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

DATE

By: /s/ Steven C. Ackmann March 29, 2005
Steven C. Ackmann, President and
Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr. March 29, 2005
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ Samue] C. Cali March 29, 2005
Samuel C. Cali, Chairman Emeritus
and Director

By: /s/ Patrick J. Dempsey March 29, 2005
Patrick J. Dempsey, Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Director

By: /s/ Paul A. Barrett March 29, 2005
Paul A. Barrett, Secretary and Director

By: /s/ John T. Cognetti March 29, 2005
John T. Cognetti, Assistant Secretary
and Director

By: /s/ Michael J, McDonald March 29, 2005
Michael J. McDonald, Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Director

By: /s/ David L. Tressler March 29, 2005
David L. Tressler, Director

By: /s/ Mary E. McDonald March 29, 2005
Mary E. McDonald, Director

By: /s/ Brian J. Cali March 29, 2005
Brian J. Cali, Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

3(i) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November
3, 1999 and as amended on April 6, 2000,

3(ii) Bylaws of Registrant.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 (ii) to Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November
3, 1999 and as amended on April 6, 2000.

10.1 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan of The Fidelity
Depaosit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-
90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November 3, 1999 and as
amended on April 6, 2000.

10.2 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount
Bank, as assumed by Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 of Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4,
filed with the SEC on Nov. 3, 1999 and as amended on April 6, 2000.

10.3 Form of Deferred Compensation Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and
Discount Bank. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on
September 12, 2000 and as amended on October 11, 2000.

10.4 Registrant’s 2000 Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September
12, 2000 and as amended by Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 on October
11,2000 and by Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on May 30, 2001.

10.5 Registrant’s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Registrant’s Registration

Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

10.6 Registrant’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

10.7 Registrant’s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement No. 333-113339 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on March 5,
2004.

10.8 Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.,
The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank and Steven C. Ackmann, dated
June 21, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 24, 2004.

11 Statement regarding computation of earnings per share.
Included herein Note 13 “Earnings per Share”, contained within the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements, and incorporated herein by reference.
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12 Statement regarding computation of ratios.
Included herein in Item 6, “Selected Financial Data”.

13 Annual Report to Shareholders. Incorporated by reference
to the 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders filed with the SEC
on Form ARS.

14 Code of Ethics. Incorporated by reference to the 2003 Annual Report to
Shareholders on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 29, 2004.

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer.
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer.
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to

18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Subsidiary State of Incorporation
The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank Pennsylvania
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Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, of
Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. of our report dated January 28, 2005 included in the Registrant’s Annual Report to Shareholders.

/s/ Parente Randolph, LLC
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania
March 23, 2005
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Steven C. Ackmann, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of] and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including 1ts consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosures and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this repert any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected . or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions);

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees, who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2005 By: /s/ Steven C. Ackmann
Steven C. Ackmann, President
and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., certify that, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosures and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected , or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions);

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees, who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2005 By: /s/ Salvatore R. DeFrancesco. Jr.
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADDED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended
December 31, 2004, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report™), I, Steven C. Ackmann, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

I.  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period covered by the Report.

Date: March 29, 2005 By: /s/ Steven C. Ackmann
Steven C. Ackmann,
President and Chief
Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADDED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended
December 31, 2004, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period covered by the Report.

Date: March 29, 2004 By: /s/ Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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CHARTING THE COURSE

Branch And ATM Locations

Main Office

Blakely & Drinker Streets
Dunmore, PA 18512
570-342-8281

Abington Office

1311 Morgan Highway
Clarks Summit, PA 18411
570-586-3212

Eynon Office

511 Scranton-Carbondale Highway
Eynon, PA 18403

570-521-5000

Peckville Office
1598 Main Street
Peckville, PA 18452
570-483-3300

Keystone Industrial Park

1232 Keystone Industrial Park Road
Dunmore, PA 18512

570-348-4003

Green Ridge Plaza
1600 Nay Aug Avenue
Scranton, PA 18509
570-342-5532

Downtown Scranton
139 Wyoming Avenue
Scranton, PA 18503
570-344-4994

Fidelity Financial Center
338 N. Washington Avenue
Scranton, PA 18503
570-504-8001

Moosic Office
4010 Birney Avenue
Moosic, PA 18507
570-504-0789

Pittston Office

403 Kennedy Boulevard
Pittston, PA 18640
570-883-7339

West Pittston Office
801 Wyoming Avenue
West Pittston, PA 18643
570-908-0103

Kingston Office

247 Wyoming Avenue
Kingston, PA 18704
570-338-0119

iy,

84,

Eynon =
Peckvilie «
Dunmore

« Clarks Summit §
Chinchilla * Scranton?
« Moosic  §
Moscow
Pittston » " 4
West Pittstan »

* Stroudsburg
Kingston =

Exxon Statioh

Rt. 307 X L '

Covington Twp. R P
Moscow, PA 18444 Lm Tl :

Convenient Food Mart
330 Northern Boulevard
Chinchilla, PA 18410

The Ice Box
3 West Olive Street
Scranton, PA 18508

US MiniMart
1650 West Main Street
Stroudsburg, PA 18360

Trust Department
Personal and Corporate Trust, Estate
Administration and Investment Services

Main Office

2nd Floor

Blakely & Drinker Streets
Dunmore, PA 18512
570-504-2244

Fidelity Asset Management
Full Brokerage and Insurance Services

Main Office

Blakely & Drinker Streets
Dunmore, PA 18512
570-504-2206

Kingston Office

247 Wyoming Avenue
Kingston, PA 18704
570-338-0127




CHARTING THE COURSE

- PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Consumer Deposit Products
m Personal Checking Accounts
o Freedom Checking Accounts
o EZ Access Checking Accounts
o Senior Checking Accounts
o Scholar Checking Accounts
= NOW Accounts
= Money Market Accounts
= Optimum Choice Savings
m Statement Savings Accounts
m Scholar Savings Accounts
s Fixed Rate or Variable Rage
2 IRA Certificate of Deposit
s Christmas and All Purpose Club Accounts
» Mortgage/Insurance Club Accounts
m Certificate of Deposit

Consumer Electronic

Services
» Overdraft Protection
m Fidelity At Work Program (Offered to
business for their employees)
m Direct Deposit Services
m ATM Services:
o Fidelity Check Card
o ATM Card
m Fidelity Telephone Link
= Fidelity On-Line
u Fidelity Web Bill Pay

Consumer Loan Products
= Home Equity Loans

= Home Equity Line of Credit

= Mortgage Loans

= Construction Mortgages

m Auto Loans

® Personal Line of Credit

» Installment Loans

m Student Loans

u Preferred Lines of Credit

Business Loan Products
u Commercial Loans

= Equipment Loans

® Floor Plan Loans

m Lines of Credit

® Community Development Loans
®» Commercial/Equipment Leasing
= Demand Loans

s Commercial Mortgages

m Participation Loans

m Letters of Credit

FDIC

PIDARA DERONT INSURANGE CORRORATION

Special Business Loan

Programs

= SBA Loan Programs
= PENNCAP Loans

= PEDFA Loans

m FHLB - BOB Program

Investment Services*
® Annuities
m Estate Settlement & Services
= Mutual Funds
m [ ong-Term Care Insurance
m Whole Life Insurance
m Variable Life Insurance
m Retirement Accounts:

o 401K

o SEP

o SIMPLE

o IRA

Business Electronic Services
= Fidelity Cash Manager
» Fidelity Telephone Line
= Fidelity On-Line
m MasterCard/Visa
o Merchant Processing
m ACH Origination Processing
m Business Check Card
m Business ATM Card

Business Deposit Products

and Services

m Business NOW Accounts

m Business Money Market Deposit Accounts

= Small Business Checking

® Corporate Checking

w Neighborhood Business Checking

= Fidelity Visa Business Check Card

m Savings Accounts

m Certificates of Deposit

m Sweep Accounts Using
Repurchase Agreements

= Fidelity At Work Program

= Fidelity Muni Choice

Trust Services
m Corporate Trust Services
o Bond Trustee
S Paying Agent
o Institutional Money Management
= Personal Trust
o Revocable and Irrevocable Trusts
m Charitable Trusts
m Special Needs Trusts
a1 Testamentary Trusts
u Endowments
= Guardianships

Additional Bank Services
m Tax Exempt Bonds
= Acceptance of Utility Bills:
© Pennsylvania American Water
® Acceptant of County Real Estate Taxes
m Acceptance of TT&L Payments for Business
= Series “EE” and “I” U.S. Savings Bonds
m Travelers Checks, Money Orders, Certified
= Checks, and Cashier Checks
= Wire Transfer Services
m Safe Deposit Services
m ACH Services
m Direct Deposit Services
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. Dempsey, Chairman of the Board Patrick J. Dempsey, Chairman of the Board
g., Secretary of the Board Paul A. Barrett. Esqg., Secretary of the Board
ohn T. Cognetti, Assistant Secretary of the Board ohn T. Cognetti, Assistant Secretary of the Board
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ohn Ferrett Assnstant Vice President
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